
7275 W. MAIN STREET, KALAMAZOO, MI 49009-9334 
269-216-5220           Fax 375-7180         TDD 375-7198 

www.oshtemo.org 

NOTICE 
OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - REGULAR MEETING 

MEETING WILL BE HELD IN PERSON  
AT OSHTEMO TOWNSHIP HALL 

7275 W MAIN STREET 
Masks Are Now Optional in Oshtemo Township Buildings 

(Meeting will be available for viewing through https://www.publicmedianet.org/gavel-to-gavel/oshtemo-township) 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2024 
3:00 P.M. 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Approval of Agenda

4. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items

5. Approval of Minutes: December 12, 2023

6. Election of 2024 Officers – Chair, Vice Chair, and Recording Secretary

7. Public Hearing – Site Plan Review and Variance Request for 1560 S 8th Street:
Scott Williams, on behalf of 1560 S 8th St LCC, is requesting relief from the setback provisions of Section
50.70 of the Zoning Ordinance in order to construct a 6,684 square foot building with a connecting
breezeway to an existing building on-site.

8. Other Updates and Business

9. Adjournment

1

https://www.publicmedianet.org/gavel-to-gavel/oshtemo-township


Oshtemo Township Board of Trustees 

Supervisor 

Cheri Bell 
Clerk 

Dusty Farmer 

Treasurer 

Clare Buszka 

Trustees 

Kristin Cole 

Zak Ford 

Michael Chapman

216-5220 cbell@oshtemo.org

216-5224 dfarmer@oshtemo.org 

216-5260 cbuszka@oshtemo.org 

760-6769
375-4260

271-5513

Township Department Information 

Assessor: 

Kristine Biddle 

Fire Chief: 

Greg McComb 

Ordinance Enforcement: 

Rick Suwarsky 

Parks Director: 

Vanessa Street
Rental Info 

Planning Director: 

Vacant
Public Works Director: 

Anna Horner 

216-5225 assessor@oshtemo.org 

375-0487 gmccomb@oshtemo.org 

216-5227 rsuwarsky@oshtemo.org 

216-5233 
216-5224 

vstreet@oshtemo.org 
oshtemo@oshtemo.org 

375-4260 planning@oshtemo.org

216-5228 ahorner@oshtemo.org 

Policy for Public Comment 
Township Board Regular Meetings, Planning Commission & ZBA Meetings 

All public comment shall be received during one of the following portions of the Agenda of an open meeting: 

a. Citizen Comment on Non-Agenda Items or Public Comment – while this is not intended to be a forum for

dialogue and/or debate, if a citizen inquiry can be answered succinctly and briefly, it will be addressed or it may

be delegated to the appropriate Township Official or staff member to respond at a later date. More complicated

questions can be answered during Township business hours through web contact, phone calls, email

(oshtemo@oshtemo.org), walk-in visits, or by appointment.

b. After an agenda item is presented by staff and/or an applicant, public comment will be invited. At the close of
public comment there will be Board discussion prior to call for a motion. While comments that include questions
are important, depending on the nature of the question, whether it can be answered without further research,
and the relevance to the agenda item at hand, the questions may not be discussed during the Board deliberation
which follows.

Anyone wishing to make a comment will be asked to come to the podium to facilitate the audio/visual 
capabilities of the meeting room. Speakers will be invited to provide their name, but it is not required. 

All public comment offered during public hearings shall be directed, and relevant, to the item of business on 
which the public hearing is being conducted. Comment during the Public Comment Non-Agenda Items may be 
directed to any issue. 

All public comment shall be limited to four (4) minutes in duration unless special permission has been granted in 
advance by the Supervisor or Chairperson of the meeting. 

Public comment shall not be repetitive, slanderous, abusive, threatening, boisterous, or contrary to the orderly 
conduct of business. The Supervisor or Chairperson of the meeting shall terminate any public comment which 
does not follow these guidelines. 

(adopted 5/9/2000) 
(revised 5/14/2013) 
(revised 1/8/2018) 

Questions and concerns are welcome outside of public meetings during Township Office hours through phone calls, 
stopping in at the front desk, by email, and by appointment. The customer service counter is open from Monday- 
Thursday, 8 a.m.-1 p.m. and 2-5 p.m., and on Friday, 8 a.m.–1 p.m. Additionally, questions and concerns are 
accepted at all hours through the website contact form found at www.oshtemo.org, email, postal service, and 
voicemail. Staff and elected official contact information is provided below. If you do not have a specific person to 
contact, please direct your inquiry to oshtemo@oshtemo.org and it will be directed to the appropriate person. 

Neil Sikora nsikora@oshtemo.org

kcole@oshtemo.org 

zford@oshtemo.org 

375-4260 mchapman@oshtemo.org

2

mailto:libbyhc@oshtemo.org
mailto:dfarmer@oshtemo.org
mailto:cbuszka@oshtemo.org
mailto:cbell@oshtemo.org
mailto:kcole@oshtemo.org
mailto:zford@oshtemo.org
mailto:kbradford@oshtemo.org
mailto:assessor@oshtemo.org
mailto:gmccomb@oshtemo.org
mailto:rsuwarsky@oshtemo.org
mailto:khigh@oshtemo.org
mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org
mailto:ilubbert@oshtemo.org
mailto:ahorner@oshtemo.org
mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org
http://www.oshtemo.org/
mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org


February 15, 2024 

Mtg date:  February 20, 2024 

To: Oshtemo Township Zoning Board of Appeals 

From:  Leeanna Harris, Zoning Administrator 

Applicant: Scott Williams  

Owner:  1560 South 8th Street LLC 

Property: 1560 South 8th Street, Parcel ID: 3905-22-485-030 

Zoning:  I-1: Industrial District

Request: Site Plan Review and Variance Request from Setback Provisions 

Section(s): Article 27 – I-1: Industrial District 
Article 50 – Schedule of Regulations 
Article 64 – Site Plan Review 

OVERVIEW: 
The applicant, on behalf of 1560 S. 
8th St LLC, is requesting Site Plan 
Review and relief from Section 
50.70.B of the Zoning Ordinance 
in order to construct a 6,684 
square foot building with a 
connecting breezeway to an 
existing building on-site. If 
approved, the variance would 
permit a new building 65 feet 
from the south property line while 
the ordinance requires 100 feet, a 
setback reduction of 35 feet. The 
subject property is currently 
zoned I-1: Industrial District and is 
located in the southeast quadrant 
of the Township. A map showing 
the location of the property is 
provided on the right, outlined in 
red.  

The property in question presently 
possesses an existing 7,803 square 
foot building situated on the far 
east end of the site. A church 
previously occupied the building; 
however, in 2023, the property 
was successfully rezoned from R-3: Residence District to I-1: Industrial District, to accommodate future 
industrial land uses. As such, the property now hosts an office space and the applicant wishes to expand 
the business through constructing a 6,684 square foot building to serve as a manufacturer for the 

3



Oshtemo Township Zoning Board of Appeals 
Setback Variance Request and Site Plan Review, 1560 S. 8th Street 
02/20/2024 ∙ Page 2 

printing and embroidery of pre-manufactured items, and other supplies. To facilitate the business’s 
expansion, the applicant’s desire is to place the proposed building northeast of the existing building 
along the parcel’s south property line. Generally, the required side yard setback for a new Industrial 
building within an I-1 zoning district is 20 feet or the height of the abutting side of the building at its 
highest point. However, the presence of a residential land use to the subject property’s immediate 
south, the supplemental setback provisions outlined in Section 50.70.B of the Zoning Ordinance gets 
triggered, which governs that there shall be a 100-foot setback that applies to industrially zoned 
property when abutting residentially zoned property. For this reason, the applicant has requested a 
variance for relief from said code section so that the proposed building be setback 65 feet from the side 
yard property line rather than the required 100 feet outlined in Section 50.70.B of the Zoning Ordinance.  

ANALYSIS:  
When reviewing this site plan and variance request, there are two sets of criteria that need to be 

considered: 1) the general Site Plan Review criteria outlined in Section 64, and 2) the supplemental setback 

provisions pertaining to industrial land uses abutting residentially zoned property outlined in Section 

50.70.B. Below is an analysis of the proposal against these two code sections. 

SECTION 64 - SITE PLAN REVIEW: 
General Zoning Compliance: 
Zoning: 1560 S. 8th Street is currently zoned I-1: Industrial District and is located in the southeast 
quadrant of the Township. The property possesses 300 feet of frontage and is approximately eight acres 
in size. Surrounding zoning adjacent to the north is I-1: Industrial District zoned property, adjacent to the 
south is RR zoned property, and across South 8th are R-5 zoned properties (shown in zoning map below). 
The proposed warehousing and present office use are considered permitted uses within the I-1: 
Industrial District. All general zoning requirements have been met. 

 

Access and Circulation: 
Access: The subject property currently has an existing drive into the site from South 8th Street along the 
northeast corner of the property. All drives will continue to be used in a similar fashion as before. The 
circulation aisle widths are proposed to be 24 feet wide, which is the minimum width required under 
Section 52.50 of the Zoning Ordinance for two-way travel. Requirements are met. 
 

 

4



Oshtemo Township Zoning Board of Appeals 
Setback Variance Request and Site Plan Review, 1560 S. 8th Street 
02/20/2024 ∙ Page 3 

Parking: A total of 32 parking spaces are shown on the Site Plan, nine of which are newly proposed. Two 
of the 32 parking spaces are ADA accessible and are proposed to be made of concrete. All parking spaces 
are proposed to be 10 feet by 20 feet. Office spaces require 1 per each 150 square feet of net floor area. 
Showrooms require 1 space per each 400 square feet of net floor area. Manufacturing and distribution 
uses require 1.5 space per 1,000 square feet, plus the required parking devoted to other uses. Storage 
requires 1 space per 1,500 square feet, plus the required parking devoted to other uses. After calculating 
the parking needed for the proposed uses on-site based on the floor plan and square footage calculation 
provided by the applicant, a total of 34 parking spaces will be required on-site. An additional two parking 
spaces will need to be provided and can be reviewed and approved administratively prior to building 
permit issuance.  
 
Easements: All easements have been illustrated. Easements are present along the eastern property line 
for Consumers Power Company and for Michigan Bell Telephone.  
 
Shared Use Path and Internal Sidewalk Network: The applicant is applying for two deviations from the 
shared use path and internal sidewalk network requirements outlined in Section 57.90 of the Township 
Zoning Ordinance, as well as the Township’s Nonmotorized Transportation Plan, which requires 
connection to and establishment of a sidewalk or shared use path along South 8th Street. Specifically, a 6-
foot-wide shared use path is indicated on the west side of South 8th Street along the subject site. The 
applicant has indicated that their reasoning for requesting said deviation (letter from request attached) is 
the proposed sidewalk would be running through an existing water run-off area and under existing 
utilities, there is steep terrain along the site, and significant site rework would be required. The applicant 
also applied for a deviation from the internal sidewalk network requirements connecting the existing 
and proposed buildings to the shared use path for the reasons listed above.  
 
Per Section 57.90 of the Zoning Ordinance, unique circumstances may exist such that the installation of 
non-motorized facilities in compliance with this article may not be appropriate at the time of 
development. Accordingly, the property owner may, in lieu of constructing the required non-
motorized facility, request to enter into an Escrow Agreement with the Township as outlined in the Non-
Motorized Facilities/ Sidewalk Ordinance. The reviewing body is authorized to approve an Escrow 
Agreement in lieu of the required non-motorized facility in the following instances: 
 

A. Where strict application [of implementing the sidewalks and non-motorized facilities] would 
result in extraordinary difficulty, including, but not limited to, severe variations in topography, 
unsuitable soils, or difficulty in providing safe separation between pedestrian and vehicular 
traffic due to site location, layout, or existing building arrangements.  

 
In addition to considering the above, the Oshtemo Public Works Department did provide a letter 
supporting the two deviations for the shared use path and for the internal sidewalk network. With the 
Oshtemo Public Works Department’s support, staff recommends that the Zoning Board of Appeals 
grant the requested deviations to permit the applicant to enter into an Escrow Agreement with the 
Township outlined in the Non-Motorized Facilities/ Sidewalk Ordinance in lieu of constructing the 
required nonmotorized facility and not be required to construct the connecting internal sidewalk 
network. 
  
 
 
 
 
 

5



Oshtemo Township Zoning Board of Appeals 
Setback Variance Request and Site Plan Review, 1560 S. 8th Street 
02/20/2024 ∙ Page 4 

Building Design: 
Building Information. The proposed 6,684 square foot building is proposed to be approximately 26 feet 
to the east of the existing building on-site, connected by a breezeway, and is proposed to have a height 
of 18 feet. The proposed dumpster location will remain in place and submitted details meet Ordinance 
requirements. An 
elevation sheet 
was provided 
with the site plan. 
A snapshot of the 
north elevation 
for the proposed 
building can be 
found to the 
right. The exterior 
material for the 
proposed building 
will be black 
vertical ribbed 
siding.  
 
Lot Dimensions: The overall project site is about eight acres in size and has approximately 300 feet of 
frontage adjacent to South 8th Street. The lot exceeds both the property area (min. 50,000 square feet) 
and frontage (min. 200 feet) requirements for unplatted parcels carrying an I-1: Industrial District 
designation. The site’s dimensions satisfy Zoning Ordinance requirements.  
 
Setbacks: Building setbacks from the north, east, and west property lines have been met as the proposed 
building is set back in excess of 100 feet from said property lines. However, the proposed building 
location as proposed does not meet the minimum side yard setback requirement of 100 feet from the 
south property line. Per Section 50.70.B of the Zoning Ordinance, an enhanced setback is required when 
industrially zoned property abuts property carrying a residential zoning designation. Due to this 
provision in the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant has applied for a variance, which will be discussed later 
in this report, requesting that the proposed side yard building setback from the south property line be 
reduced from the required 100 feet in the Ordinance down to 65 feet (a reduction of 35 feet). See 
evaluation under Section 50.70.B – Setback Provisions (Variance). 
 
Landscaping: A landscaping plan was provided, but a number of details are still missing on the 
landscaping plan. An updated landscaping plan meeting all applicable requirements of Article 53 of the 
zoning ordinance shall be submitted to the Township and be reviewed and approved administratively. 
  

Lighting: A lighting and photometric plan has been provided; however, some details are missing or need 
to be slightly adjusted. An updated lighting plan meeting all applicable requirements of Article 54 of the 
zoning ordinance shall be submitted to the Township. Staff is confident that a revised lighting plan can 
be reviewed and approved administratively and recommend the Zoning Board of Appeals include such 
as a condition of approval. 
  
Signs: The applicant previously received approval for one monument sign near the northeast corner of 
the property, near the entrance from South 8th Street. The specs and location of the sign is satisfactory 
and meets all Ordinance requirements. 
 
 

6



Oshtemo Township Zoning Board of Appeals 
Setback Variance Request and Site Plan Review, 1560 S. 8th Street 
02/20/2024 ∙ Page 5 

Engineering: Prein & Newhof and the Oshtemo Public Works Department have reviewed the 
proposal and have noted that there are some engineering concerns that have not yet been addressed; 
however, felt that the remaining engineering concerns are minor enough where they can be reviewed 
and approved administratively and recommend the Zoning Board of Appeals include such as a 
condition of approval. 
 
Fire Department: The Fire Marshal has reviewed the site plan and for the most part is satisfied with the 
site; however, does have some concerns about the breezeway connecting the existing building to the 
proposed building. The Fire Marshal provided three different courses of action that the applicant could 
take to address the concerns. Staff are confident that this is something that can be reviewed and 
approved administratively and recommend the Zoning Board of Appeals include such as a condition of 
approval. 
 
SECTION 50.70.B – SETBACK PROVISIONS (VARIANCE) 

STANDARDS OF REVIEW - STAFF ANALYSIS: 
The Michigan courts have applied the following principles for a dimensional variance, which collectively 
amount to demonstrating a practical difficulty, as follows: 

• Special or unique physical conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the property 
involved and which are not generally applicable to other properties in the same district. 

• Strict compliance with the standard would unreasonably prevent the landowner from using the 
property for a permitted use; or would render conformity to the ordinance unnecessarily 
burdensome. 

• The variance is the minimum necessary to provide substantial justice to the landowner and 
neighbors. 

• The problem is not self-created. 

• Public safety and welfare. 

Staff has analyzed the request against these principles and offer the following information to the Zoning 
Board of Appeals. 

STANDARDS OF APPROVAL OF A NONUSE VARIANCE (PRACTICAL DIFFICULTY): 
Standard:  Unique Physical Circumstances 

Are there unique physical limitations or conditions which prevent compliance? 
 
Comment: The 
applicants indicated 
that unique physical 
circumstances in this 
case would be the 
location and size of 
the existing parking 
lot, the location of 
the existing septic 
tank and drain field, 
the setback of the 
existing building 
(shown to the right), 
and the location of 
the entrances into 

7



Oshtemo Township Zoning Board of Appeals 
Setback Variance Request and Site Plan Review, 1560 S. 8th Street 
02/20/2024 ∙ Page 6 

the existing building. However, the location of the building is entirely discretionary and could be placed 
elsewhere, even with the aforementioned site elements. The property is 300 feet in width, has an 
average depth of 1,200 feet, and approximately 360,000 square feet in size (not including the 
unaddressed/uncombined parcel to the rear).  
 
Standard:  Conformance Unnecessarily Burdensome 

Are reasonable options for compliance available? 
Does reasonable use of the property exist with denial of the variance? 

 
Comment:  The applicants indicated that the location of the proposed building was largely chosen in 
part due to the location of the existing 7,803 square foot building, existing building entrances, existing 
septic and drain field, existing parking lots, existing driveways and to encourage traffic flow and promote 
attractive curb appeal. However, the matter of building an additional structure on this property is 
discretionary and reasonable use of the property does still exist, whether in its present state or in a 
different configuration, even with the enhanced setback provisions abutting the residential zoning on the 
southern property line. The proposed building could be placed elsewhere on the property, especially 
given that the applicants also own the 5.320 acres of property to the immediate west, giving more 
options for reasonable compliance.  
 
Standard:  Minimum Necessary for Substantial Justice – need to review documents in office.  

Applied to both applicant as well as to other property owners in district. 
Review past decisions of the ZBA for consistency (precedence). 

 
Comment: In researching past Zoning Board of Appeals decisions regarding the request for relief 
from increased setback requirements, Planning Department staff were able to identify 3 similar cases. 

1. D & R Sports, 8178 West Main Street, 10/6/2014: The applicants sought relief from the 
supplemental setback requirements for properties abutting residential zoning districts from the 
Zoning Board of Appeals to allow for the construction of a new storage building. If approved, the 
new structure was proposed to be located 58 feet from the property line, 33 feet less than 
required by the supplemental setback provisions. The applicant indicated that there was an 
existing berm fully planted with spruce trees that should completely obstruct the view of the 
building. The Zoning Boards of Appeals granted the variance request given the adjacent use of the 
property is a unique element and it was unlikely to have a material impact on the adjacent 
property. Minutes from the meeting are attached. 

2. Spurr Dental, 1624 South Drake Road, 4/8/2002:  The applicant sought relief from the 

supplemental setback requirements from CR: Local Commercial District, Restricted classification 

to adjacent R-3 properties from the Zoning Board of Appeals to allow for the construction of a 

new office building on the property. Without the variance, the applicants argued it would be 

difficult to construct a building with the resulting width of the property with the supplemental 

setbacks required on the north and south property lines. The Zoning Board of Appeals granted 

the variance request, allowing the building to be built to the standard commercial office setback 

requirements and not have to follow the enhanced applicable setbacks, citing that the 

conformance was unnecessarily burdensome, that the hardship was not self-created, and that 

the spirit and intent of the Ordinance would be observed by the variance. Minutes from the 

meeting are attached. 

3. Friendship Animal Hospital, 2999 South 11th Street, 11/14/2023: The applicant sought relief from 
the supplemental setback requirements for properties abutting residential zoning districts, with 
single-family homes located on them, from the Zoning Board of Appeals to allow for the 
construction of a new animal hospital. Without the variance, the applicants argued it would be 
difficult to construct a building with the resulting width of the property with the supplemental 

8



Oshtemo Township Zoning Board of Appeals 
Setback Variance Request and Site Plan Review, 1560 S. 8th Street 
02/20/2024 ∙ Page 7 

setbacks required on the north and south property lines of 50 feet, leaving approximately 19 feet 
to construct a building. The Zoning Boards of Appeals denied the variance request given the 
request was a self-created hardship.  

 
Standard:  Self-Created Hardship 

Are the conditions or circumstances which resulted in the variance request created by 
actions of the applicant?  

 
Comment:  In 2023, the current property owners elected to rezone the property from R-3: 
Residential District to I-1: Industrial District. With the current configuration of the site, it could be argued 
that the need for the variance requested is self-created since the previous setbacks to the south were 50 
feet for R-3 zoning classifications abutting RR zoning classifications, but due to the rezoning, now it is 
subject to an increased setback requirement. The applicants did indicate that this would not be a self-
created hardship since they were not the original developer of the property; however, it is the applicants 
desire to expand and construct a 6,684 square foot building. 
 
Standard:  Public Safety and Welfare 

Will the variance request negatively impact the health, safety, and welfare of others? 
 

Comment:  Setbacks act as a crucial part for any type of structure as they provide a form of security 
and privacy between adjacent uses, especially from Industrial uses to Residential uses, and in-between 
property owners. Setbacks can be considered the breathing room between properties where building 
restrictions apply. Although, the applicants indicated that careful planning was utilized in order to 
preserve the green belt along the south boundary line, in between the existing building and the 
residential property to the south. It should be also noted that there is currently a legally nonconforming 
7,802 square foot building approximately 47 feet from the southern property line. Additionally, the 
applicants indicated that the property owner to the immediate south does not have any issues with the 
placement of the proposed building; however, it is important to note that ownership of property is not 
static. The current property owner could be okay with the proposed layout, but this does not mean that 
such will continue into the future with the future landowners. 
 
POSSIBLE ACTIONS  
The Zoning Board of Appeals may take the following possible actions:  

- Motion to approve as requested (conditions may be attached) 
- Motion to deny 

 
The motion should include the findings of fact relevant to the requested variance. Based on the staff 
analysis, the following findings of fact are presented: 

• Support of variance approval  
o Substantial justice is met as the Zoning Board of Appeals granted setback variances for 

two similar cases in the past. 

• Support of variance denial 
o The necessity of the variance from the enhanced 100-foot setback is a self-created 

hardship. 
o There are no unique physical limitations that prevent strict compliance with the Zoning 

Ordinance.  

o Conformance to the ordinance is not unnecessarily burdensome.  

o Allowing the variance may have a negative impact to the health, safety, or welfare of the 

public by allowing the building to be built within the required enhanced setback. 

9



Oshtemo Township Zoning Board of Appeals 
Setback Variance Request and Site Plan Review, 1560 S. 8th Street 
02/20/2024 ∙ Page 8 

Possible motions for the Zoning Board of Appeals to consider include: 

A. Site Plan and Variance Approval 
The Zoning Board of Appeals approves the site plan and variance request due to substantial justice 

being met with the following conditions: 

1. Zoning Board of Appeals to grant deviations from the requirements in 57.90 for internal 

sidewalk network and shared use path. 

2. An updated landscaping plan meeting the requirements outlined in Section 53 of the 

Zoning Ordinance shall be submitted to the Township for review and approval prior to 

building permit issuance.  

3. A revised lighting plan meeting the requirements outlined in Section 54 of the Zoning 

Ordinance shall be submitted to the Township for review and approval prior to building 

permit issuance.  

4. Finalization of grading details and any other engineering details shall be subject to the 

administrative review and approval of the Township Engineer prior to building permit 

issuance.  

5. Annotations on sheet 1 indicating that the setbacks are 20 feet for the side are incorrect 

and shall be eliminated from the site plan prior to building permit issuance.  

6. Verification of floor plan area calculations in relation to parking shall be reviewed and 

approved administratively prior to building permit issuance.  

7. A Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control (SESC) permit from the Kalamazoo County 

Drain Commissioner’s Office will be required prior to building permit issuance. 

 
B. Site Plan and Variance Denial 

The Zoning Board of Appeals denies the site plan and variance request due to the proposal being 
a self-created hardship, the lack of unique physical limitations on-site, conformance to the 
ordinance is not unnecessarily burdensome as reasonable use of the property will remain if 
denied, and allowing the variance might have a negative impact to the health, safety, and 
welfare of the public.  

 
Attachments: Application for Site Plan Review, Site Plan, Exterior Elevations, Applicant’s Letter of Intent 
for the Deviation Request, Landscaping Plan, Lighting Plan, Floor Plan, Drainage Calculations, Application 
for the Variance Request, Applicant’s Letter of Intent for the Variance Request, Minutes from 10/6/2014 
meeting, Minutes from 4/8/2002 meeting, Minutes from 11/14/2023 meeting 
 

10



11



12



13



 

[This page left intentionally blank] 

14



15



16

randr
Seal and Signature



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



57.90 SIDEWALKS AND NON-MOTORIZED FACILITIES 
For those uses requiring Site Plan review under this ordinance, an internal sidewalk network (including 
connection to and establishment of a sidewalk or shared use path in the right-of-way of any arterial, 
collector, or local road indicated on the Non-motorized Facilities Map abutting the site) shall be required 
to be constructed within public street rights-of-way and/or private street easements. Sidewalk easements 
on private property may be entered into and utilized if determined appropriate by the Township Engineer. 

However, unique circumstances may exist such that the installation of non-motorized facilities in 
compliance with this article may not be appropriate at the time of development. Accordingly, the property 
owner may in lieu of constructing the required non-motorized facility, request to enter into an Escrow 
Agreement with the Township as outlined in the 
Non-Motorized Facilities/ Sidewalk Ordinance. The reviewing body is authorized to approve an Escrow 
Agreement in lieu of the required non-motorized facility in the following instances: 

A. Where strict application would result in extraordinary difficulty, including, but not limited 
to, severe variations in topography, unsuitable soils, or difficulty in providing safe 
separation between pedestrian and vehicular traffic due to site location, layout, or existing 
building arrangements. 

B. The Township has plans to install sidewalks along the property in question in the next five 
years or in coordination with an anticipated project. 

Section 294.000 NON-MOTORIZED FACILITIES/SIDEWALKS 
Sec V Construction Regulations  

H. Escrow Agreement - When the Township determines it is in the Township's best interest to 
delay construction of sidewalks, the developer/owner of the real property may pay the cost of 
construction of the sidewalk (as determined by the Township Engineer) to the Township and shall 
execute the Township's standard escrow agreement to guarantee completion of the sidewalk or 
non-motorized path/facility, pursuant to all Township standards and requirements. The cost 
figure shall include the costs of design, site preparation, construction, site restoration and site 
inspection. 

 
Engineering comments based on information above: 

• 57.90A applies: Trade-off of below considerations, protecting natural features and natural site 
topography would be more appropriate and beneficial to the community (Ord 56.20) 

o To follow natural topography would compromise integrity of sidewalk and potentially 
safety of users if submerged as it would be construction through and long the bottom of 
a retention pond essentially.  

o Adding fill to construct to a more appropriate grade would disrupt existing natural 
features and retention area which is also called to be preserved in other sections of Ord.  

o Unknown time of NM install on 8th St – largely because of bridge over Amtrak to the north 
of this site does not have adequate facilities for non-motorized at this time.  

o Low, retention area also collects public road runoff and construction of acceptable non-
motorized facilities would require extensive work to create defined ditch, add drive 
culvert, etc. to accommodate public road standards if any impacts.  

24



EXISTING TREES
EXISTING TREES

42'

PROPOSED ADDITION
EXISTING BUILDING

EXISTING TREES

DECIDUOUS CANOPY  TREE

PRESERVED TREE

FLOWERING UNDERSTORY TREE

CANOPY TREES

 
AC SHADBLOW SERVICEBERRY AMELANCHIER CANADENSIS 8' HT.

CC EASTERN REDBBUD CERCIS CANDENSIS 8' HT.

SITE NOTES:
-ALL TREE PLANTINGS  TO RECEIVE 3" OF BARK TO MAKE A 4' BARK SAUCER

-ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE DRILL SEEDED AND HYDROMULCHED WITH SPARTAN GRADE A LAWN MIX

                            240 LBS./ACRE SEED RATIO
-ALL TREE PLANTING PITS SHALL BE DUG  TWO TIMES THE SIZE OF THE ROOTBALL AND BACKFILLED
   WITH 1/3TOPSOIL 1/3 SAND 1/3 COMPOSTED PLANTING MIX 
-ALL TREE PLANTINGS ARE REQUIRED TO BE STAKED WITH 3 HARDWOOD STAKES AND ARBOR  TIES 
   TO ENSURE HEALTHY GROWTH

-ALL SLOPES GREATER THAN 1:4 SHALL RECEIVE DS-75 EROSION BLANKETS

-OWNER TO WATER MAINTAIN PLANTINGS TO ENSURE HEALTHY VIGOROUS NURSERY STOCK

      
               

LT TULIP TREE  LILIODENDRON TULIPIFERA 2.5"CAL.
UNDERSTORY TREES:

OSHTEMO  TOWNSHIP  ZONING ORDINANCE  LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

SECTION 53.40 SCREENING BETWEEN LAND USES
            - RR ZONING   REQUIREMENT                     300 L.F. TOTAL                                         

SOUTH PROPERTY LINE HAS MORE THAN 30' REQUIRED BUFFER AND EXISTING PLANT MATERIALS
             OF CANOPY TREES AND UNDERSTORY TREES TO MEET ORDINANCE REQUIREMENT SCREENING INTENT

            
              - ADJACENT USE BOTH NORTH AND WEST HAVE AN  EXISTING WOODLAND PRESERVED AREA AND
              ARE ZONED I-1 AND DO NOT REQUIRE SCREENING
SECTION 53.60 STREET RIGHTS-OF-WAY GREENBELTS
            266 L.F. TOTAL OF FRONTAGE ON 8TH STREET 
            PLAN SHOWS 11 MATURE TREES WITH SPECIES IDENTIFIED AND CALIPER REQUIREMENT ON PLAN  
            NOTE: THESE EXISTING NATURAL TREES ARE LOCATED IN THE VEGETATIVE BUFFER GREENBELT
            AND LOCATED IN THE NATURAL RETENTION AREA FOR THE STORM WATER FOR THE SITE.   
                                                        9 TREES REQUIRED          11 PRESERVED EXISTING TREES SHOWN ON PLAN 
    

                                                                
       

SECTION 53.70 INTERIOR SITE LANDSCAPING 
SITE REQUIREMENT 
             A. TOTAL OF 8,484 S.F. FOR THE PROPOSED ADDITION AND PARKING AREA
              10% REQUIREMENT 848 S.F.  REQUIRED    972 S.F. PROPOSED 
               SEE THE DESIGNED PLANTING BED AREAS ARE APPROXIAMTELY 9,000 S.F. (SEE PLAN)
             B. LANDSCAPING SHALL ADDRESS AT LEAST ONE SIDE YARD OR REAR YARD ADJACENT TO 
                 THE PROPOSED BUILDING
             C. ADDITIONAL LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENT
                 1 TREE IS REQUIRED FOR EVERY 1,500S.F. AND 1 CANOPY TREE FOR EVERY 2,500S.F.   
                                                                                                         REQUIRED       PROPOSED
                                                                               CANOPY TREES        0                     0
                                                                         UNDERSTORY TREES      0                     0

SECTION 53.50 PARKING LOT LANDSCAPE
              PROPOSED PARKING LOT ADDITION IS 10 SPACES THEREFORE IS EXEMPT FROM 
              PARKING LOT LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

                                                                                     
                                                                
       

PROPOSED PLANTING BED AREAS 

DENSE EXISTING CANOPY AND UNDERSTORY TREES

EXISTING TREES

55'52'
42'

1
 Lt

1
 Ac

1
 Cc

SHRUB PLANTINGS
EA  DWARF BURNING BUSH  EUONYMOUS ALATAS COMPACTUS' 18-24" HT.
HP  LITTLE LIME HYDRANGEA  HYDRANGEA PANICULATA 'JANE' 18-24" HT.
JG GREY OWL JUNIPER  JUNIPERUS VIRGINIANA 'GREY OWL' 18-24"   

7
 Ea

5
 Jg

7
 Ea

25



Statistics

Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min

ENTRY 2.5 fc 4.0 fc 1.2 fc 3.3:1

Non-Parking 0.1 fc 5.9 fc 0.0 fc N/A

Parking/Drive 1.2 fc 2.4 fc 0.1 fc 24.0:1

WALKWAY 0.6 fc 1.3 fc 0.2 fc 6.5:1

2.4

5.9

1.3

4.0

0.7

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.8

1.1

1.4

1.2

1.0

0.6

0.3

0.3

0.5

0.9

1.2

1.6

1.3

1.6

1.3

0.9

1.2

1.7

1.4

1.8

1.6

1.4

0.6

1.2

1.5

1.0

1.9

1.8

1.9

1.7

1.7

0.8

1.3

0.7

2.1

1.9

2.1

1.8

1.9

1.1

1.1

0.5

2.1

1.9

2.2

1.9

2.2

1.5

0.9

0.3

1.9

1.8

2.0

1.9

2.1

1.5

0.7

0.3

1.6

1.6

1.8

1.8

1.9

1.2

0.7

0.3

0.5

1.3

1.5

1.7

1.7

1.7

0.9

0.8

0.4

0.3

0.9

1.2

1.6

1.6

1.4

0.8

1.1

0.5

0.3

0.6

0.9

1.3

1.4

1.1

0.6

1.3

0.7

0.3

0.5

1.1

1.3

1.2

1.0

0.5

1.5

0.9

0.5

1.1

1.5

1.4

1.2

0.8

0.5

1.7

1.1

1.4

1.8

1.6

1.3

1.0

0.6

0.4

1.8

1.1

2.2

1.8

1.4

1.1

0.7

1.6

0.8

1.6

2.1

1.6

1.2

0.7

0.4

1.2

1.4

0.5

2.3

2.2

1.7

1.4

0.8

0.5

0.4

0.3

1.0

1.2

1.1

0.4

2.1

1.9

1.6

1.1

0.8

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.9

1.2

1.3

1.2

1.0

0.3

2.0

1.9

1.7

1.3

1.1

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.4

1.2

0.8

0.3

2.0

1.8

1.6

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.6

1.7

1.7

1.6

1.3

0.9

0.3

1.5

1.3

1.3

1.5

1.7

1.9

2.1

2.0

1.8

1.3

1.1

0.3

1.0

0.7

1.2

1.2

0.3

1.5

0.5

1.7

0.8

1.9

0.9

1.7

0.7

1.5

0.4

1.2

0.3

1.1

0.3

0.9

0.2

1.1

0.3

1.2

0.3

1.5

0.4

1.7

0.7

1.9

0.9

1.7

0.7

1.4

0.4

1.0

0.2

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.2

1.0

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.1

0.1

0.0

3.0

1.4

4.8

1.3

1.9

4.9

0.7

3.7

1.9

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.8

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.8

0.5

0.1

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.2

0.9

0.3

0.1 0.8 0.3

0.6

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.2

0.1

1.0

1.0

0.2

0.1

0.1

3.1

5.2

1.6

5.6

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.7

0.8

0.6

0.6

0.8

0.2

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.8

0.9

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.8

1.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.8

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.6

0.4

0.4

0.6

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.7

1.0

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.6

0.9

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

0.7

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.6

1.0

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.6

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.6

0.7

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.6

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.6

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.7

1.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.7

1.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.7

1.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.6

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.5

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.8

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.5

0.8

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.5

0.8

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.40.50.60.81.01.01.00.90.70.60.5

0.3

0.40.40.30.3

0.91.2

1.0

1.1

3.6

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.20.20.2

1.21.2

33.9'

W

G

SS

CONNECT NEW SITE 

LIGHTING TO EXISTING 

LIGHTING CIRCUIT.

RELOCATE SITE LIGHTING POLE 

AND CONNECT TO EXISTING SITE 

LIGHTING CIRCUIT.

SA SA
SA

SA

118' - 11 13/32" 112' - 11 3/16" 96' - 5 13/16"

78' - 9 31/32"

95' -
 9

 3
/8

"

8
9
' -

 6
 7

/3
2
"

147' - 
7 5

/1
6"

89' - 
10 15/32"

93' - 2 19/32"

6
9

' -
 1

1
 2

7
/3

2
"

20' POLE MOUNTED ON A 2' 

BASE TYPICAL OF ALL 

FIXTURES
PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING CAN DOWNLIGHTS ARE 

900 LUMENS

NEW WALL PACK FIXTURES 

ARE 1,500 LUMENS AND 

MOUNTED AT 12' AFF

LIGHT POLE

24"

24"

24" DIA.

5'-0

"

HAND HOLE

GRADE

PVC CONDUIT

5/8" DIA. X 8'-0" L COPPER 

CLAD GROUND ROD

GROUND WIRE TO POLE BASE 

(MATCH CIRCUIT GROUND CONDUCTOR SIZE) 

CURB

3000 PSI CONCRETE

#6 VERTICAL RODS

#3 HORIZONTAL 

RODS 12" O.C.

ANCHOR BOLTS AS 

REQUIRED BY FIXTURE 

MANUFACTURER

24" FOR PAVED AREAS

12" FOR UNPAVED AREAS

THE FOLLOWING DIMENSION EQUALS 

ONE INCH WHEN PRINTED TO SCALE.

1"

Project No: 

Drawing Title:

©  2024 IGNYTE DESIGN

SCALE

STAMP

Issued For: Date

E010

ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN

Complete Team

Outfitters

24.003

Issue DateProject Status

1" = 30'-0"

ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN

SCALE: NONEE010

2 TYPICAL SITE LIGHT POLE BASE DETAIL

LIGHTING CONTROL NOTES:

1.  ALL POLE MOUNTED FIXTURES WILL BE CONNECTED TO A MECHANICAL TIMMER TUNRING THE FIXUTRES ON 

AT 6:00 AM AND OFF AT DAWN.  THE FIXTURES WILL COME ON A DUSK AND TURN OFF AT 10:00 PM.  

2.  ALL BUILDING MOUNTED LIGHTS WILL BE CONNECTED TO A MECHANICAL TIMMER TUNRING THE FIXUTRES ON 

AT 6:00 AM AND OFF AT DAWN.  THE FIXTURES WILL COME ON A DUSK AND TURN OFF AT 10:00 PM. 

26



C
T

O
15

60
 S

 8
th

 S
t.

Ka
la

m
az

oo
, M

I  
49

00
9

ENG. BY :

PSC :

DRAWN BY :

MTO BY :

FBi PROJECT # :

SHEET :

LCS_LLC

XX

Josh S.

Anthony P.

20-1667-00

B
Y

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
O

.
D

A
TE

1
20

23
-0

9-
26

LC
S_

LL
C

D
ra

ft 
fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

re
vi

ew
2

20
23

-0
9-

28
LC

S_
LL

C
Pe

rm
it 

Se
t

3
20

23
-0

9-
29

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
re

vi
si

on
s)

4
20

23
-1

0-
11

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. C

O
A

P1
00

62
3,

 in
te

rio
r c

ha
ng

es
)

5
20

23
-1

0-
13

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
 re

vi
si

on
s &

 a
dd

l i
nt

er
io

r c
ha

ng
es

)
.....

LANDING DETAIL (DOORS @ GRADE)
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

≥
 D

O
O

R
 W

ID
TH

WIDTH REQUIREMENTS VARY
IF THE DOOR IN THE FULLY
OPEN POSITION DECREASES
THE LANDING WIDTH BY >7"

3'-8"

PLAN VIEW

SECTION VIEW

EXTERIOR LANDING PERMITTED
TO SLOPE 2% (MAX.)

.25
12

THRESHOLD DETAIL
SCALE: 3" = 1'-0"

RAISED THRESHOLDS >1
4"

TO BE BEVELED W/ A SLOPE
NOT TO EXCEED 50%

1 4
"

1 2
"

RAISED THRESHOLDS NOT
TO EXCEED 12"

LANDING REQUIREMENTS ARE
INDEPENDENT OF DOOR SWING

SE
A

L

002

S
H

EE
T 

TI
TL

E:

FI
RE

 L
IF

E 
SA

FE
TY

COPYRIGHT  FBi Buildings, Inc.

SCALE : 1/8" = 1'-0"

FIRE & LIFE SAFETY PLAN

GROUND FLOOR

6,864 SQ. FT.
OCCUPANT LOAD FACTOR: 200

OCCUPANT LOAD: 35

MEZZANINE

1,804 SQ. FT.
OCCUPANT LOAD FACTOR: 500

OCCUPANT LOAD: 4

TOTAL BUILDING OCCUPANT LOAD: 39

FIRE EXTINGUISHERS PROVIDED & INSTALLED
ACCORDING TO IBC 2015, CHAPTER 9,
SECTION 906: PORTABLE FIRE EXTINGUISHERS

ACCESSIBLE ROUTES SHALL BE PROVIDED
ACCORDING TO IBC 2015, CHAPTER 11,
SECTION 1104: ACCESSIBLE ROUTE

EXIT TRAVEL DISTANCE: 110'

MOST REMOTE POINT

GROUND SNOW LOAD (Pg): psf
ROOF SNOW LOAD (Ps): psf
ROOF LIVE LOAD (reducible, Lr): psf
TOP CHORD DEAD LOAD: psf
BOTTOM CHORD DEAD LOAD: psf

BALANCED SNOW: psf
WINDWARD SIDE: psf
LEEWARD SIDE: psf
LEEWARD UNBALANCED: psf
UNBALANCED DIST. FROM RIDGE: lnft

ADDITIONAL DRIFT:
magnitude at start: psf
magnitude at end: psf
distance: lnft

DESIGN WIND SPEED: mph
RISK CATEGORY:
EXPOSURE CATEGORY:
INTERNAL PRESSURE COEFFICIENT:

ASCE LOAD STANDARD:

SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY: B
SITE CLASS: D
RESPONSE MODIFICATION FACTOR: 6 1/2
ANALYSIS PROCEDURE: SIMPLIFIED

PRESUMED SOIL BEARING PRESSURE: psf

ADDITIONAL SLIDING:
magnitude: psf
distance: lnft

DESIGN LOADS:

7-10

35
21.7
20
4
4

21.7
6.5
21.7
20.8
10.2

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

115
2
C
+/-.18

2,000
ALLOWABLE AREA:
EXISTING AREA:
PROPOSED AREA:

ft2

ft2

ft2

TOTAL AREA: ft2

FIRE AREA:

12,000
0
8,668
8,668

WIDTH OF OPEN SPACE (W):
FRONTAGE AREA INCREASE FACTOR (If):

SPRINKLER AREA INCREASE FACTOR (Is):

BASE TABULAR AREA (At):
AREA INCREASE (AtxIf)+(AtxIs):
ALLOWABLE AREA (Aa):
EXISTING AREA:
PROPOSED AREA:

ft2

ft2

ft2

ft2

ft2

PERIMETER FRONTING OPEN SPACE (F):
PERIMETER OF ENTIRE BUILDING (P):

TOTAL AREA: ft2

ft
ft
ft

BUILDING AREA:

340
340
28
0.70

0

8,500
5,963
14,463
0
6,864
6,864

MODEL BUILDING CODE:

CONSTRUCTION TYPE:
OCCUPANCY:
STORIES:
ALLOWABLE MEAN HEIGHT:
ACTUAL MEAN HEIGHT:

PROJECT INFORMATION:

2015 MICHIGAN BLDG CODE

5B
F-1
1
40'-0"
23'-11 1/8"

THE ALLOWABLE FIRE AREA FOR THIS PROJECT IS
GOVERNED BY SECTION 903.2.4 #1 FROM THE 2015
IBC.  OTHER USES WITH MORE STRINGENT FIRE AREA
RESTRICTIONS WITHIN THE S-1 OCCUPANCY USE
GROUP ARE NOT PERMITTED WITH THIS DESIGN.

10/16/2023

27



C
T

O
15

60
 S

 8
th

 S
t.

Ka
la

m
az

oo
, M

I  
49

00
9

ENG. BY :

PSC :

DRAWN BY :

MTO BY :

FBi PROJECT # :

SHEET :

LCS_LLC

XX

Josh S.

Anthony P.

20-1667-00

B
Y

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
O

.
D

A
TE

1
20

23
-0

9-
26

LC
S_

LL
C

D
ra

ft 
fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

re
vi

ew
2

20
23

-0
9-

28
LC

S_
LL

C
Pe

rm
it 

Se
t

3
20

23
-0

9-
29

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
re

vi
si

on
s)

4
20

23
-1

0-
11

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. C

O
A

P1
00

62
3,

 in
te

rio
r c

ha
ng

es
)

5
20

23
-1

0-
13

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
 re

vi
si

on
s &

 a
dd

l i
nt

er
io

r c
ha

ng
es

)
.....

(2) #5 HORIZONTAL
REBAR CONTINUOUS

T/ F.F.
100'-0"

FINISH FLOOR BY
PURCHASER

100

FOUNDATION DETAIL
A

SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

1

1

3
"

d

4" COMPACTED FILL

24" WIDE x 12" DEEP
THICKENED SLAB

104'-0"

6
6
'-0

"

51'-91
2"

2'-0"

2
'-0

"

2
4
'-2

3 4
"

34'-05
8"6'-51

2"

2'-0"

7'-7"

2
9
'-9

1 4
"

SE
A

L

100

S
H

EE
T 

TI
TL

E:

FO
UN

DA
TI

ON
 P

LA
N

COPYRIGHT  FBi Buildings, Inc.

100

A

100

A

SCALE : 1/8" = 1'-0"

FOUNDATION PLAN

100

A

100

A

100

A

10/16/2023

28



ENG. BY :

PSC :

DRAWN BY :

MTO BY :

FBi PROJECT # :

SHEET :

LCS_LLC

XX

Josh S.

Anthony P.

20-1667-00

C
T

O
15

60
 S

 8
th

 S
t.

Ka
la

m
az

oo
, M

I  
49

00
9

COLUMN FOOTING SCHEDULE

MISCELLANEOUS NOTESPAD SIZE TYPELABEL

R 30" Ø x 13" P.I.P. N/A

U 42" Ø x 20" P.I.P. N/A

W 30" Ø COMPOSITE
& P.I.P. SEE EXTENDER DETAIL ON SHEET 600

J 16"Ø x 1.5" COMPOSITE REFER TO ESR-2147 DOCUMENT

SIZECOLUMNLABEL COMMENTS

COLUMN TOP SCHEDULE

1 3-PLY 2x8 SIDE TOP

2 3-PLY 2x8 DOOR / CORNER TOP

10 3-PLY 2x8 END TOP

11 3-PLY 2x8 END TOP

12 3-PLY 2x8 END TOP

13 3-PLY 2x8 END TOP

RED

COLOR

GREEN

PRE-CUT GIRT SCHEDULE

ORANGE

YELLOW

PURPLE

BLUE

BLACK

LENGTH
( -1/16" )

20'-0"

16'-0"

14'-9 1/4"

13'-0"

12'-0"

8'-0"

4'-9 1/4"

SIZECOLUMNLABEL COMMENTS

COLUMN MIDDLE SCHEDULE

A 3-PLY 2x8 NON-TREATED MIDDLE

E 3-PLY 2x8 NON-TREATED WINDOW SILL MIDDLE

B 3-PLY 2x8 NON-TREATED OHD MIDDLE

C 3-PLY 2x8 NON-TREATED WINDOW MIDDLE

D 3-PLY 2x8 NON-TREATED WINDOW MIDDLE

ANCHORS
UPLIFTLENGTHSIZE

STUB / COL.LABEL

FULL COLUMNS OR STUBS

TYPE
BRACKETCOMMENTSUPLIFT ANCHOR

FASTENERS

COLUMN STUB SCHEDULE

DEPTH
STUB / COL. 

3 3-PLY 2x8 5'-0" (2) 2" x 2" x 8 1/2" (1) 1/2" Ø CARRIAGE BOLT CONCRETE STUB REG. 4'-0"

6 4-PLY 2x8 5'-0" (1)12" PC EXTENDER (1) 1/2" Ø GR. 8 HEX BOLT CONCRETE STUB OFFSET 5'-0"

1 6x6 POST 16'-0" (2) 12" TR. BLOCKS (10) 10d NAILS PER BLOCK TREATED BREEZEWAY POST N/A 4'-0"

4 3-PLY 2x8 5'-0" (2) 3" x 3" x 12" (1) 1/2" Ø CARRIAGE BOLT CONCRETE STUB REG. 4'-0"

5 3-PLY 2x8 5'-0" (2) 3" x 3" x 12" (1) 1/2" Ø CARRIAGE BOLT CONCRETE STUB CORNER 4'-0"

B
Y

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
O

.
D

A
TE

1
20

23
-0

9-
26

LC
S_

LL
C

D
ra

ft 
fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

re
vi

ew
2

20
23

-0
9-

28
LC

S_
LL

C
Pe

rm
it 

Se
t

3
20

23
-0

9-
29

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
re

vi
si

on
s)

4
20

23
-1

0-
11

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. C

O
A

P1
00

62
3,

 in
te

rio
r c

ha
ng

es
)

5
20

23
-1

0-
13

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
 re

vi
si

on
s &

 a
dd

l i
nt

er
io

r c
ha

ng
es

)
.....

COLOR

MISCELLANEOUS PRE-CUT SCHEDULE

LENGTH COMMENTS

RED

GREEN

ORANGE

YELLOW

+ +

+ +

+ +

+ +

MFTR/MODEL SIZELABEL ACCESSORIES

OPENINGS SCHEDULE

TYPE ROUGHOUT DETAIL LOCATION / COMMENTS

WALKDOOR AJ #5100 SERIES 3068 40 5/16" x 81" SOLID PANEL W/ TEMP. LOCKSET FBi TO FRAME OUT & INSTALL, SEE FRAME OUT
DETAIL ON SHEET 650

WALKDOOR BY PURCHASER 6070 VERIFY ON SITE PURCHASER TO SUPPLY & INSTALL
CODE COMPLIANT HARDWARE

FBi TO PROVIDE FRAME OUT ONLY, PURCHASER TO
FURNISH & INSTALL DOOR

OVERHEAD BY PURCHASER 12' x 14' 11'-10 1/2" x 13'-11 1/2" NONE FBi TO FRAME OUT, PURCHASER TO SUPPLY &
INSTALL, SEE DOOR #4 DETAIL ON SHEET 600

ATTIC ACCESS FBi 24" x 44" 24 1/8" x 44 1/8" VERIFY LOCATION W/ PURCHASER, SEE DETAIL ON
SHEET 300

WINDOW BY PURCHASER 40" x 42" VERIFY ON SITE BY PURCHASER FBi TO PROVIDE FRAME OUT ONLY, PURCHASER TO
FURNISH & INSTALL WINDOW

SINGLE-HUNG

WALKDOOR AJ #5100 SERIES 3068 40 5/16" x 81" 1-LITE W/ NO LOCKSET FBi TO FRAME OUT & INSTALL, SEE FRAME OUT
DETAIL ON SHEET 650

WINDOW BY PURCHASER 48" x 42" VERIFY ON SITE BY PURCHASER FBi TO PROVIDE FRAME OUT ONLY, PURCHASER TO
FURNISH & INSTALL WINDOW

WINDOW BY PURCHASER 48" x 120" VERIFY ON SITE BY PURCHASER FBi TO PROVIDE FRAME OUT ONLY, PURCHASER TO
FURNISH & INSTALL WINDOW

WINDOW BY PURCHASER 78" x 54" VERIFY ON SITE BY PURCHASER FBi TO PROVIDE FRAME OUT ONLY, PURCHASER TO
FURNISH & INSTALL WINDOW

WINDOW BY PURCHASER 96" x 24" VERIFY ON SITE BY PURCHASER FBi TO PROVIDE FRAME OUT ONLY, PURCHASER TO
FURNISH & INSTALL WINDOW

WINDOW BY PURCHASER 96" x 48" VERIFY ON SITE BY PURCHASER FBi TO PROVIDE FRAME OUT ONLY, PURCHASER TO
FURNISH & INSTALL WINDOW

WINDOW BY PURCHASER 192" x 48" VERIFY ON SITE BY PURCHASER FBi TO PROVIDE FRAME OUT ONLY, PURCHASER TO
FURNISH & INSTALL WINDOW

WINDOW BY PURCHASER 192" x 54" VERIFY ON SITE BY PURCHASER FBi TO PROVIDE FRAME OUT ONLY, PURCHASER TO
FURNISH & INSTALL WINDOW

MISCELLANEOUS NOTES

DIAGONAL:  (66'-0" x 52'-0") = 84'-0 5
16" (x2)

   = 4" x 3" DOWNSPOUT LOCATION

SW-400 = SHEARWALL BAY LOCATION (SEE DETAIL ON SHEET 650)

X 

W-1-1

W-1-2

W
-1

-3

W
-1

-4

8'-0"
℄

8'-0"
℄

4'-0" 8'-0" 4'-0"
℄

8'-0"
℄

8'-0"
℄

8'-0"
℄

8'-0"
℄

8'-0"
℄

7'-03
4" 11'-101

2" 5'-03
4"

20'-0"

8'-0"
℄

8'-0"
℄

4'-0"
℄

4'-0"
℄

8'-0"
℄

8'-0"
℄

8'-0"
℄

8'-0"
℄

8'-0"
℄

4'-0"
℄

4'-0"
℄

8'-0"
℄

8'-0"

104'-0"

16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 12'-0" 16'-0"

RED UNPAINTED UNPAINTED UNPAINTED UNPAINTED UNPAINTED RED

RED UNPAINTED UNPAINTED UNPAINTED UNPAINTED UNPAINTED UNPAINTED RED

8
'-0

"
℄

8
'-0

"
℄

8
'-0

"
℄

5
'-0

"
℄

8
'-0

"
℄

5
'-0

"
℄

8
'-0

"
℄

8
'-0

"
8
'-0

"

6
6
'-0

"

℄

8
'-0

"
℄

8
'-0

"
℄

5
'-0

"
℄

8
'-0

"
℄

5
'-0

"
℄

8
'-0

"
℄

8
'-0

"
8
'-0

"
℄

1
6
'-0

"
1
3
'-0

"
1
3
'-0

"
1
6
'-0

"

1
6
'-0

"
1
3
'-0

"
1
3
'-0

"
1
6
'-0

"

26'-4"

℄
8
'-0

"

4'-91
4"

℄
8'-0"

℄
8'-0"

12'-0"

16'-0" 20'-0"
℄ ℄

16'-0" 14'-91
4"

4'-81
4"

3'-71
2"5'-101

2"3'-71
2"

1
2
'-8

1 4
"

2
6
'-7

7 8
"

2
6
'-7

7 8
"

8
'-0

"

8
'-0

"

1
'-6

"
1
'-6

"

7'-2"
℄

8'-0"
℄

Thermal:
To have a great-performing thermal package
materials must be installed correctly and be
properly maintained throughout the duration
of the project.  Purchaser is responsible for
holding all trades accountable for maintaining
/ repairing any penetrations through insulation
or barrier(s) to their original uncompromised
state.

The following sequence / details are provided
to aid in the proper installation of the thermal
package:
1. See "Building Wrap" notes for proper

installation.
2. Install visqueen and insulation per

"Thermal Installation Sequence @ Corner"
detail on sheet 650.

3. Install ceiling visqueen and liner per
"Vapor Barrier Sequence Detail" on
sheet 650.

4. Spray foam around doors & windows per
"Walkdoor & Window Frameout Details" on
sheet 650 prior to installing interior
trims.

2x8 TREATED SILL
PLATE W/ SILL SEALER

2x8 TREATED PRIMARY
GRADE BOARD

DRIP CAP

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF CONCRETE

LAMINATED COLUMN

MAX-RIB STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

AJ-31 TRIM

R-PANEL STEEL CEILING
W/ VISQUEEN

MAX-RIB STEEL SIDING
FASTENED W/ SCREWS

12

3.5

B/ TRUSS

MAX-RIB STEEL ROOFING
FASTENED W/ SCREWS

2x4 PURLINS

2x6 BARGE BOARD W/
FASCIA (AJ-12)

24" METAL SOFFIT
(VENTED)

TRUSS

12" HEEL

"F & J" CHANNEL ON 2x4
GIRT

PRE-FRAMED OVERHANG
TAIL (SEE OVERHANG
DETAIL ON SHEET 650)

118'-0"

2x VERTICAL BLOCKING
BETWEEN GIRTS ON BOTH
SIDE OF EACH COLUMN

6" GUTTER

REFER TO "TRUSS-TO-HEEL
CONNECTION" DETAIL ON
SHEET 651

BUILDING WRAP:
· FASTEN TO OUTSIDE FACE

OF GIRTS WITH STAPLES
· TAPE ALL LAPS ON GIRTS
· RUN WRAP BEHIND DRIP

CAP
· TAPE WRAP TO BOTTOM

FACE OF F&J CHANNEL
· INCLUDE ON GABLES

99'-9"
B/ GRADE BOARD

CONCRETE EMBEDDED
UPLIFT ANCHORS

STEEL REINFORCED
PRE-CAST CONCRETE
STUB

FINISH FLOOR BY
PURCHASER

200

WALL SECTION
1

SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

R-38 BLOWN INSUL.
(BY PURCHASER)

1
2" x 12" POLYSTYRENE
BAFFLE

2x8 SPF FLAT @ TOP
OF WALL CAVITY

S
TU

B
 / 

C
O

L.
 D

EP
TH

T/ F.F.
100'-0"

BELOW-GRADE PERIMETER
INSULATION BY PURCHASER,
IF REQUIRED

REFER TO VAPOR BARRIER
SEQUENCE DETAIL FOR
VISQUEEN INSTALLATION

8" (R-25) UNFACED BATT
INSULATION W/ BLACK VISQUEEN

PERMA-COLUMN STUB - FASTEN
COLUMN TO STUB W/ (2) 12" Ø HEX
BOLTS & (8) STRUCTURAL-M SCREWS

LAP SCREW (THROUGH RIB)
CANNOT BE LEFT OUT AT
DRIP CAP, Z-TRIM, & EAVE
LOCATIONS

REFER TO COLUMN
FOOTING SCHEDULE
ON SHEET 200

60d NAILS @ 13 POINTS BETWEEN
COLUMNS TO HOLD BATT INSULATION

(8) 2x4 MSR1650 GIRTS
@ 24" o.c. Z-TRIM HEIGHT

110'-0"

Z-TRIM (PBFA) ON ADDED GIRT

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 48" o.c.

SE
A

L

200

S
H

EE
T 

TI
TL

E:

FL
OO

R 
PL

AN

SCALE : 1/8" = 1'-0"

FLOOR PLAN

COPYRIGHT  FBi Buildings, Inc.

1

200

1

2

3

A

PRE-DRILLED PURLIN LABELS

PRE-DRILLED BCT LABELS

COLUMN TAG KEY:

M1A1

FO
O

TI
NG

S
TU

B
M

ID
D
LE

TO
P

IN-GROUND
COLUMNS

600

2

PORCH
COLUMNS

FO
O

TI
NG

C
O

LU
M

N

M1

CEILING STEEL LENGTHS

7 1
6
" O

S
B
 A

TT
IC

 D
R
A
FT

S
TO

P 
W

/ P
U
R
LI

N
 B

LO
C

KI
N
G

 (
S
EE

 D
ET

A
IL

 O
N
 S

H
EE

T 
3

0
0

)

ATTIC CATWALK
(SEE DETAIL ON SHEET 300)

Fastener Specs:
1. Nails shall be called out on drawings by penny weight. The following fasteners & specs have

been used in design & shall be used in construction:
- 10d x 1 12"   -    .148" x 1 12"
- 10d              -    .120" x 2 34" threaded pneumatic
- 16d              -    .162" x 3 12" common
- 16d R.S.       -    .148" x 3 12" threaded hardened-steel

2. Substitution of fasteners shall not be permitted without the written consent of the design
engineer except as follows:  

- 10d nails may be used to replace 16d or 16d R.S. nails where specified at a 2:1 ratio.
         - 16d or 16d R.S. nails may be used to replace 10d nails where specified at a 2:3 ratio.
3. Unless noted otherwise all nails shall be evenly distributed over the connection area, placed

in an orderly straight pattern, and shall be driven into the center of the narrow face of 2x
members when applicable. Edge distances, end distances and spacing for nails shall be
sufficient to prevent splitting of the wood. Nails that do not make a solid connection shall be
compensated for by adding extra nails that meet the required specs.

4. Fasteners in pressure treated lumber must be hot-dipped galvanized, stainless steel or
tested for that purpose.

5. All light-gauge metal connectors shall be fastened per manufacturer's specs.
6. Fasteners called out on the drawings shall be as follows:

- STRUCTURAL-XS -  14" x1 12" GRK RSS or equal
- STRUCTURAL-S -  516" x 2 12" GRK RSS or equal
- STRUCTURAL-M -  516" x 4" GRK RSS or equal
- STRUCTURAL-L -  516" x 5 12" CONNEXTITE structural wood screw or equal
- PURLIN SCREW -  38" x 6" FASTENMASTER HEADLOK or equal
- I-BEAM SCREW -  14-20 x 2 34" IMPAX WOOD TO METAL SELF-DRILLER or equal
- CONCRETE SCREW -  14 x 2 34" TAPCON or equal

Wood Specs:
1. Design and construction of all structural wood members shall be in accordance with the

current or referenced issue of AF&PA-NDS with supplement.
2. Minimum grades of all wood members shall be as follows unless noted otherwise:

Girts - (2X4) MSR1650 SPF - (2x6) #2 SPF or better
Purlins, studs & bracing - (2x4) #2 SPF or better - (2x6) #2 SPF or better
Columns - (2x6) #1 SYP treated & non-treated
Columns - (2x8) #1 SYP treated & MSR2400 SYP non-treated
Truss webs, chords, headers, joist, rafters & all other framing material

#1 or #2 SYP - (2x4 & 2x6)
MSR 2400 SYP - (2x8, 2x10 & 2x12)
2.0E Fb = 3,100psi - (LVL)

3. All members in contact with soil or concrete shall be preservative-treated to min 0.8 #/c.f.
retention CCA for columns/posts and UC4 Ground Contact for all others.

4. Plywood and OSB, when shown on construction documents shall be APA rated.
5. Deflections of wood members shall be limited to the model building code-specified minimums.

PROPOSED EXISTING

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

4

7 1
6
" O

S
B
 A

TT
IC

 D
R
A
FT

S
TO

P 
W

/ P
U
R
LI

N
 B

LO
C

KI
N
G

 (
S
EE

 D
ET

A
IL

 O
N
 S

H
EE

T 
3

0
0

)

X X 

X X 

X 

X 

200

1

1

1 1 1

3

4

A A A

B
BB

C

C

D

D

F F F F

GH

R5A2 R4A1 R4A1 R4A1 R4A1 R4A1 R4A1 R4A1 R4A1 R4A1 R4A1 R5A2R4A2 R4A2 R4A2 R4A2

R4A1 R5A2R4A1R4A1R4A1U4A1U4A1U4A1U5A2 U4A2 U4A2 R4A1 W6A2W6A2

_ _B1_ _B1_ _C1_ _C1

_ _D1 _ _D1

601

12

601

10

J1

J1

J1

J1

601

11

J3A10

J3A10

J3A11

J3A11

J3A12

J3A12

J3A13

J3A13

J3A10

J3A10

J3A11

J3A11

J3A12

J3A12

J3A13

J3A13

J3E_

10/16/2023

29



ENG. BY :

PSC :

DRAWN BY :

MTO BY :

FBi PROJECT # :

SHEET :

LCS_LLC

XX

Josh S.

Anthony P.

20-1667-00

C
T

O
15

60
 S

 8
th

 S
t.

Ka
la

m
az

oo
, M

I  
49

00
9

8'-0" 32'-4"61'-67
16"

7
'-1

11 2
"

1
9
'-1

1
3 4
"

1
0
'-0

3 4
"

1
7
'-5

"

9'-11
2" 8'-0"

51'-117
16"

2
4
'-4

3 4
"

3'-9"

3
'-6

"
5
'-6

1 2
"

2
9
'-1

01 2
"

8
'-0

"
8
'-0

"
8
'-0

"
5
'-0

"

9'-43
4" 8'-0" 8'-0" 8'-0"℄ ℄ ℄

℄
℄

℄

2
7
'-1

1
1 4
"

3
9
'-1

1
1 4
"

B
Y

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
O

.
D

A
TE

1
20

23
-0

9-
26

LC
S_

LL
C

D
ra

ft 
fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

re
vi

ew
2

20
23

-0
9-

28
LC

S_
LL

C
Pe

rm
it 

Se
t

3
20

23
-0

9-
29

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
re

vi
si

on
s)

4
20

23
-1

0-
11

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. C

O
A

P1
00

62
3,

 in
te

rio
r c

ha
ng

es
)

5
20

23
-1

0-
13

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
 re

vi
si

on
s &

 a
dd

l i
nt

er
io

r c
ha

ng
es

)
.....

ANCHORS
UPLIFTLENGTHSIZE

STUB / COL.LABEL

FULL COLUMNS OR STUBS

TYPE
BRACKETCOMMENTSUPLIFT ANCHOR

FASTENERS

COLUMN STUB SCHEDULE

DEPTH
STUB / COL. 

2 6x6 POST 16'-0" (2)1/2" Ø x 6" TITEN (8) STRUCTURAL-M SCREWS LANDING SUPPORT POST UNIV. N/A

7 3-PLY 2x6 19'-0" (2)1/2" Ø x 6" TITEN (8) STRUCTURAL-M SCREWS PARTITION COLUMN UNIV. N/A

8 3-PLY 2x6 19'-0" (2)1/2" Ø x 6" TITEN (8) STRUCTURAL-M SCREWS PARTITION COLUMN UNIV. N/A

SE
A

L

201

S
H

EE
T 

TI
TL

E:

IN
TE

RI
OR

 F
LO

OR
 P

LA
N

SCALE : 1/4" = 1'-0"

COPYRIGHT  FBi Buildings, Inc.

INTERIOR FLOOR PLAN

PROPOSED EXISTING

1

2

3

J
2

STAIRS UP

EMBROIDERY ROOM

SCREEN PRINTING

SCREEN WASH-OUT

EXPOSURE ROOM

EMPLOYEE LOCKERS

RESTROOM

SIGN SHOP & HEAT PRESS

INVENTORY RECEIVING / CAR WRAP

3

2

2

7 7 78

8

8

8

8

SYP 2x6 GIRT
NAILER

10/16/2023

30



C
T

O
15

60
 S

 8
th

 S
t.

Ka
la

m
az

oo
, M

I  
49

00
9

ENG. BY :

PSC :

DRAWN BY :

MTO BY :

FBi PROJECT # :

SHEET :

LCS_LLC

XX

Josh S.

Anthony P.

20-1667-00

B
Y

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
O

.
D

A
TE

1
20

23
-0

9-
26

LC
S_

LL
C

D
ra

ft 
fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

re
vi

ew
2

20
23

-0
9-

28
LC

S_
LL

C
Pe

rm
it 

Se
t

3
20

23
-0

9-
29

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
re

vi
si

on
s)

4
20

23
-1

0-
11

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. C

O
A

P1
00

62
3,

 in
te

rio
r c

ha
ng

es
)

5
20

23
-1

0-
13

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
 re

vi
si

on
s &

 a
dd

l i
nt

er
io

r c
ha

ng
es

)
.....

CAT WALK DETAIL
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

2x4 BCT

ADDED 2x4

12" x 716" OSB CATWALK

TOP VIEW

OSB WILL OVERHANG
1.5" IN SOME AREAS
DUE TO STAGGER OF
2x4s

101
2"

1'-0"

3
3
'-2

 1
/8

"

0
'-2

 1
/4

"
1
'-2

"

2
'-6

"

3
'-1

0
"

5
'-2

"

6
'-6

"

7
'-1

0
"

9
'-2

"

1
0
'-6

"

1
2
'-6

"

1
4
'-6

"

1
6
'-6

"

1
8
'-6

"

2
0
'-6

"

2
2
'-6

"

2
4
'-6

"

2
6
'-6

"

2
8
'-6

"

3
0
'-6

"

3
2
'-6

"

16'-0"

32'-71
2"

PURLIN & BCT LAYOUT
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

ATTIC ACCESS ASSEMBLY
SCALE: N.T.S.

R.O. (SCHEDULE ON SHEET 200)

2x8 SPF #2/BTR STRINGERS
FASTENED TO BOTTOM CHORD
W/ (2) 10d TOE-NAILS (TYP.)

31 2
"

36" 2x4 SPF #2/BTR SUPPORT
NAILER FASTENED TO THE
BOTTOM CHORD W/ (5) 10d
NAILS EVENLY SPACED

BOX FASTEN TO STRINGERS
W/ (4) 10d NAILS (TYP.)

PREFABRICATED BOX

R.O. (S
CHEDULE 

ON SHEET
 200)

EAST END WIND BRACE LOCATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

B
C
T 

O
N
LY

7
-1

0
0
 1

/2
"

G
R
EE

N
1
7
'-1

0
 7

/8
"

8
-1

1
3
 3

/8
"

YE
LL

O
W

9
'-6

 7
/8

"

9
-1

2
6
 3

/8
"

O
R
A
N
G

E
3
'-3

 7
/8

"

9
-1

2
6
 3

/8
"

O
R
A
N
G

E
3
'-3

 7
/8

"

8
-1

1
3
 3

/8
"

YE
LL

O
W

9
'-6

 7
/8

"

7
-1

0
0
 1

/2
"

G
R
EE

N
1
7
'-1

0
 7

/8
"

B
C
T 

O
N
LY

WEST END WIND BRACE LOCATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

B
C
T 

O
N
LY

6
-9

6
 1

/2
"

R
ED

2
2
'-0

 7
/8

"

7
-1

0
6
 1

/4
"

G
R
EE

N
1
3
'-8

 7
/8

"

8
-1

1
3
 3

/8
"

YE
LL

O
W

9
'-6

 7
/8

"

9
-1

2
6
 3

/8
"

O
R
A
N
G

E
3
'-3

 7
/8

"

9
-1

2
6
 3

/8
"

O
R
A
N
G

E
3
'-3

 7
/8

"

8
-1

1
3
 3

/8
"

YE
LL

O
W

9
'-6

 7
/8

"

7
-1

0
0
 1

/2
"

G
R
EE

N
1
7
'-1

0
 7

/8
"

B
C
T 

O
N
LY

W1

W4

W6

W6
W4

W1

66'

9'8"11
9'8"11

17'5"4
7'8"9

19'0"13
1'7"9

2'
11

"5
2'

11
"5

5'11"11
5'11"11

2'
11

"5
2'

11
"5

7'11"8
7'11"8

15'10"15
7'11"8

21'10"10
5'11"11

2'
11

"5
2'

11
"5

1'7"9
1'7"9

2'
11

"5
2'

11
"5

7'8"9
7'8"9

17'5"4
9'8"11

1'0"2
1'0"2

2'
11

"5
2'

11
"5

9'11"6
9'11"6

16'11"14
7'0"8

18'8"14
1'9"

27'9"11
9'0"12

30'11"14
3'2"3

2'
11

"5
2'

11
"5

5'2"3
5'2"3

2'
11

"5
2'

11
"5

9'0"12
9'0"12

10'9"13
1'9"

17'10"5
7'0"8

27'9"11
9'11"6

2'
11

"5
2'

11
"5

1'0"2
1'0"2

1'

10
'7

"8

(a) (a)

A

B

C D

E

F

G

H I

J

K

LMNOPQRSTU V

3.5
12

SS1012(C7)
SS1319(**)

3X12

4X7(**)

5X7(**)

SS1012(I)

10X10

6X10(**)

8X12(**)

8X12 SS0712

SS0919(R)

8X12

8X12(**)

6X10(**)

10X10

SS1012(I)

5X7(**)

4X7(**)

3X12

SS1012(C7)
SS1319(**)

DRAFTSTOP FRAMING DETAILS
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

1'-0"

3
"

2'-0"
SET ACCESS DOOR ABOVE
CATWALK & APPLY BLOCKING
TO SEAL DRAFT PLANE

INSTRUCTIONS FOR DRAFTSTOP ACCESS DOOR:
1)  FRAME 24" WIDE OPENING AT CENTER OF DRAFTSTOP. TOP OF DOOR FRAME = PRE-FRAMED HORIZONTAL 2x4 IN TRUSS WEBBING.
2)  CUTOUT DOOR PANEL IN OSB SHEET SO THAT PANEL LAPS THE 2x4 FRAMING 1".  WIDTH OF DOOR PANEL SHOULD BE 26".
3)  IF DOOR IS LOCATED OVER A CATWALK, THEN MAKE SURE DOOR & CATWALK FRAMING CREATE A DRAFT SEAL (SEE DRAWING BELOW).
4)  INSTALL HINGES & LATCHES (DOOR SHALL BE SELF-CLOSING & SELF-LATCHING & OPERABLE FROM BOTH SIDES OF DRAFTSTOP).

FASTEN PRE-CUT OSB PIECES
TO THE TRUSS W/ 16ga x 1 34"
STAPLES @12"o.c.

NOTCH OSB AROUND BCTs &
APPLY SEALANT

SE
A

L

300

S
H

EE
T 

TI
TL

E:

FR
AM

E/
BR

AC
IN

G 
PL

AN

COPYRIGHT  FBi Buildings, Inc.

Q-LYFT FRAME & ROOF BRACING PLAN

TR USS  HANG ING  AND  BR AC ING  GENER AL  NOTES

1. THE FBI TRUSS HANGING AND BRACING MANUAL (HEREAFTER CALLED
“BRACING MANUAL”) LATEST EDITION SHALL BE USED IN CONJUNCTION
WITH THE DETAILS ON THIS BRACING PLAN.

2. OPERATORS MUST BE FAMILIAR WITH THEIR EQUIPMENT AND TRUSS
HANGING PROCEDURES FOUND IN THE BRACING MANUAL.

3. BUILDING MUST BE TEMPORARILY BRACED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
BRACING MANUAL PRIOR TO ERECTION OF ANY TRUSSES.

4. CONNECTIONS OF ALL TYPES MUST MEET OR EXCEED THAT WHICH IS
FOUND IN THE BRACING MANUAL OR THIS BRACING PLAN.

5. SPECIFIC DETAILS ON CHAINING AND BRACING SYSTEMS SPECIFIED ON
THIS BRACING PLAN MUST BE FOLLOWED PER THE BRACING MANUAL.

6. ANY UNFORESEEN OR CHANGING CIRCUMSTANCES SHOULD BE
ADDRESSED WITH ENGINEER AND/OR CREW MANAGER.

IT IS ACCEPTABLE TO HANG (7) TRUSSES BEFORE PURLINS AND
V-BRACES MUST BE INSTALLED ON THAT SECTION OF THE ROOF.

2
x6

 B
C

T 
C

O
N
N
EC

TO
R

BCT

X-ZZZ
ZZZ

LE
NG

TH
 O

F 
EA

CH
 2

x6
 (F

EE
T)

OV
ER

AL
L L

EN
GT

H 
(IN

CH
ES

)

1"

FROM END OF
BRACE TO FOLD
IN BRACKET

X

X

WIND BRACE ASSEMBLY

SEE ALSO DETAIL ON SHEET 651

TRUSS DRAWING - T1
SCALE : N.T.S.

**WARNING** READ AND FOLLOW ALL NOTES ON THIS DRAWING!
**IMPORTANT**FURNISH THIS DRAWING TO ALL CONTRACTORS INCLUDING THE INSTALLERS

Trusses require extreme care in fabricating, handling, shipping, installing and bracing.  Refer to and follow the latest edition of BCSI (Building
Component Safety Information, by TPI and SBCA) for safety practices prior to performing these functions.  Installers shall provide temporary
bracing per BCSI. Unless noted otherwise,top chord shall have properly attached structural sheathing and bottom chord shall have a properly
attached rigid ceiling.  Locations shown for permanent lateral restraint of webs shall have bracing installed per BCSI sections B3, B7, or B10,
as applicable.   Apply plates to each face of truss and position  as shown above and on the Joint Details,  unless noted otherwise.    Refer to
drawings 160A-Z for standard plate positions.
ITW Building Components Group Inc. shall not be responsible for any deviation from this drawing,any failure to build the truss in conformance
with ANSI/TPI  1, or for handling, shipping, installation and bracing of trusses. A seal on this drawing or cover page listing this drawing,
indicates  acceptance  of  professional  engineering  responsibility solely for the design shown.    The  suitability  and  use  of  this
drawing for any structure is the responsibility of the Building Designer per ANSI/TPI 1 Sec.2.
For more information see this job's general notes page and these web sites:  ITWBCG:  www.itwbcg.com; TPI:  www.tpinst.org; SBCA:  www.sbcindustry.com; ICC:  www.iccsafe.org

<b>Lumber</b>

<gap/>Top chord: 2x12 SP 2400f-2.0E;
Bot chord: 2x10 SP 2400f-2.0E;
Webs: 2x6 SP #1; W1 2x4 SP #1; W4,
W6 2x8 SP 2400f-2.0E;
Lt Wedge: 2x4 SP #1;Rt Wedge: 2x4 SP #1;

<b>Bracing</b>

<gap/>(a) 2x4 #3 or better "L" reinforcement. 80% length of
web member. Attach with 10d Box or Gun
(0.128"x3",min.)nails @ 6" oc.

<b>Plating Notes</b>

<gap/>(I) - plates so marked were sized using 0% Fabrication
Tolerance, 0 degrees Rotational Tolerance, and/or
zero Positioning Tolerance.

<gap/>(**) 10 plate(s) require special positioning. Refer to
scaled plate plot details for special positioning
requirements.

<b>Purlins</b>

<gap/>In lieu of structural panels or rigid ceiling use purlins
to laterally brace chords as follows:
   Chord      Spacing(in oc)      Start(ft)      End(ft)
       TC                24                 0.00          33.00
       TC                24               33.00          66.00
       BC                192               0.15          65.85
Apply purlins to any chords above or below fillers
at 24" OC unless shown otherwise above.

<b>Loading</b>

<gap/>Truss designed for unbalanced snow loads.

<b>Wind</b>

<gap/>Wind loads based on MWFRS with additional C&C
member design.

<b>Additional Notes</b>

<gap/>WARNING! Reaction exceeds allowable

<gap/>WARNING: Furnish a copy of this DWG to the
installation contractor. Failure to follow provisions of
BCSI in handling and installation of trusses can result
in serious injuries. Do not permit inexperienced and
uninstructed people to install trusses. See
"WARNING" note below. BCSI recommends retaining
a registered professional engineer for the design of
temporary bracing.

Maximum Reactions (lbs)
Gravity Non-Gravity

Loc   R+ / R- / Rh / Rw / U / RL

U 8561 /- /- /2503 /2349 /550
V 8561 /- /- /2503 /2349 /-
Wind reactions based on MWFRS
U Brg Width = 5.5 Min Req = 7.1
V Brg Width = 5.5 Min Req = 7.1
Bearings U & V are a rigid surface.

Maximum Top Chord Forces Per Ply (lbs)
Chords Tens. Comp.

A - B 12742- 23795
B - C 12640- 23190
C - D 11431- 20899
D - E 11465- 20790
E - F 9679- 16943

Chords Tens. Comp.

F - G 9679 - 16943
G - H 11465 - 20790
H - I 11431 - 20899
I - J 12641 - 23190
J - K 12742 - 23795

Maximum Bot Chord Forces Per Ply (lbs)
Chords Tens. Comp.

A - T 22550- 11786
T - S 20917- 10540
S - R 20917- 10540
R - Q 17737 - 8905
Q - P 14488 - 6999

Chords Tens. Comp.

P - O 14488 - 6999
O - N 17737 - 8908
N - M 20917 - 10543
M - L 20917 - 10543
L - K 22550 - 11783

Maximum Web Forces Per Ply (lbs)
Webs Tens. Comp.

B - T 1030 - 1079
T - C 1586 - 1055
C - R 1741 - 2673
R - E 3536 - 1823
E - Q 2386 - 4879
Q - F 5052 - 2146

Webs Tens. Comp.

F - O 5052 - 2146
O - G 2386 - 4879
G - N 3536 - 1823
N - I 1741 - 2673
I - L 1585 - 1055
L - J 1030 - 1079

Loading Criteria (psf)

TCLL: 22.00
TCDL:  4.00
BCLL:  0.00
BCDL:  4.00

Des Ld: 30.00
NCBCLL:0.00
Soffit:  2.00
Load Duration: 1.15
Spacing: 96.0 "

Wind Criteria
Wind Std: ASCE 7-10
Speed: 115 mph
Enclosure: Closed
Risk Category: II
EXP: C
Mean Height: 15.00 ft
TCDL: 2.4 psf
BCDL: 2.4 psf
MWFRS Parallel Dist: 0 to h/2
C&C Dist a: 6.00 ft

GCpi: 0.18
Wind Duration: 1.33

Snow Criteria (Pg,Pf in PSF)

Pg: 35.0 Ct: 1.1 CAT: II
Pf: 24.3 Ce: 0.9
Lu: 35.0 Cs: 1.00
Snow Duration: 1.15

Code / Misc Criteria
Bldg Code: IBC 2015
TPI Std: 2007
Rep Factors Used: No
FT/RT: 10(0)/5(0)/4(0)
Plate Type(s):
18SS, WAVE

Defl/CSI Criteria
PP Deflection in   loc L/defl  L/#
VERT(LL): 1.364 Q    577   240
VERT(TL): 2.053 Q    384   240
HORZ(LL): 0.409 L      -         -
HORZ(TL): 0.615 L      -         -
Creep Factor: 1.5
Max TC CSI:  0.950
Max BC CSI:  0.989
Max Web CSI:  0.963
Mfg Specified Camber:

VIEW Ver: 21.01.01A.0521.21

20-1667-00
CTO
T1

Ply: 1
Qty: 14
Wgt: 736.4 lbs

SEQN: 11259 / T1 / COMN
FROM: JSS DRW:

... / ... 09/22/2023

V-BRACING

16'-0"

CROSS CHAIN
LOCATIONS

24'-0"

CROSS CHAIN
LOCATIONS

DIAGONAL WALL
BRACING

24'-0"

CROSS CHAIN
LOCATIONS

24'-0"

CROSS CHAIN
LOCATIONS

16'-0"

PROPOSED EXISTING

1
0

'-0
"

1
0

'-0
"

12'-0"

STINGERSTINGER F4

STINGERSTINGER F4

Q1Q5

Q5Q1

Q-LYFT ERECTION NOTES:
1. (4) BOLTS PER BEAM CONNECTION
2. 2" ANTICIPATED DEFLECTION
3. IF BEAMS CANNOT BE LIFTED TO WITHIN 6" OF BOTTOM OF

TRUSS, CONFIRM THAT QUAD WILL NOT HIT ROOF WHEN LIFTING
4. FRAMES MUST BE TIED TOGETHER BEFORE DESCENDING
5. BRACE BUILDING ACCORDING TO BRACING MANUAL AFTER

LIFTING OR SEE BRACING PLAN (IF APPLICABLE)
6. INSTALL BCT'S BEFORE LIFTING

10/16/2023

31



2
9
'-0

3 8
"

2
3
'-1

1
1 8
"

TOP OF FINISHED FLOOR

M
EA

N
 H

EI
G

H
T 

 

PE
A
K 

H
EI

G
H
T 

 

C
T

O
15

60
 S

 8
th

 S
t.

Ka
la

m
az

oo
, M

I  
49

00
9

ENG. BY :

PSC :

DRAWN BY :

MTO BY :

FBi PROJECT # :

SHEET :

LCS_LLC

XX

Josh S.

Anthony P.

20-1667-00

B
Y

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
O

.
D

A
TE

1
20

23
-0

9-
26

LC
S_

LL
C

D
ra

ft 
fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

re
vi

ew
2

20
23

-0
9-

28
LC

S_
LL

C
Pe

rm
it 

Se
t

3
20

23
-0

9-
29

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
re

vi
si

on
s)

4
20

23
-1

0-
11

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. C

O
A

P1
00

62
3,

 in
te

rio
r c

ha
ng

es
)

5
20

23
-1

0-
13

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
 re

vi
si

on
s &

 a
dd

l i
nt

er
io

r c
ha

ng
es

)
.....

2'-111
2"

SIDEWALL STARTER PANEL
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

3
'-1

"

ENDWALL STARTER PANEL
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

ROOF STARTER PANEL
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

3'-1"

SE
A

L

400

S
H

EE
T 

TI
TL

E:

BU
IL

DI
NG

 E
LE

VA
TI

ON
S

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION

COPYRIGHT  FBi Buildings, Inc.

FINISH GRADE ELEVATION AT BUILDING PERIMETER
TO BE BELOW STEEL SIDING DRIP CAP AND ABOVE
THE BOTTOM OF THE PRIMARY GRADE BOARD.

EXISTING PROPOSED

PROPOSED EXISTING

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

EAST ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION

10/16/2023

32



ENG. BY :

PSC :

DRAWN BY :

MTO BY :

FBi PROJECT # :

SHEET :

LCS_LLC

XX

Josh S.

Anthony P.

20-1667-00

C
T

O
15

60
 S

 8
th

 S
t.

Ka
la

m
az

oo
, M

I  
49

00
9

1'-4" 1'-4"

1
'-4

"
1
'-4

"

B
Y

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
O

.
D

A
TE

1
20

23
-0

9-
26

LC
S_

LL
C

D
ra

ft 
fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

re
vi

ew
2

20
23

-0
9-

28
LC

S_
LL

C
Pe

rm
it 

Se
t

3
20

23
-0

9-
29

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
re

vi
si

on
s)

4
20

23
-1

0-
11

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. C

O
A

P1
00

62
3,

 in
te

rio
r c

ha
ng

es
)

5
20

23
-1

0-
13

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
 re

vi
si

on
s &

 a
dd

l i
nt

er
io

r c
ha

ng
es

)
.....

24" LVL BRIDGING DETAIL
SCALE: N.T.S.

BEND SIMPSON TB36 STRAPS
AROUND TOP & BOTTOM OF
JOISTS & FASTEN W/ (2) 10d x 1 12"
NAILS PER END

SCALE : N.T.S.

SIMPSON HU216 BRACKET

(8) #9 x 1 12" SD SCREWS

(18) #10 x 1 12" SD SCREWS

SCALE : N.T.S.

SIMPSON LU210 BRACKET

(6) #9 x 1 12" SD SCREWS

(10) #9 x 1 12" SD SCREWS

SCALE : N.T.S.

SIMPSON HU212-2 BRACKET

(10) #10 x 2 12" SD SCREWS

(22) #10 x 2 12" SD SCREWS

HEADER REFERENCELABEL

HEADER SCHEDULE

H-1 SEE DETAIL (H-1) SHEET 505

H-2 SEE DETAIL (H-2) SHEET 505

H-3 SEE DETAIL (H-3) SHEET 501

SEE DETAIL (H-4) SHEET XXX

SE
A

L

500

S
H

EE
T 

TI
TL

E:

IN
TE

RI
OR

 D
IM

EN
SI

ON
  P

LA
N

SCALE : 1/4" = 1'-0"

COPYRIGHT  FBi Buildings, Inc.

MEZZANINE FRAMING PLAN

PROPOSED EXISTING

1

2

3

J 2H-1

H-2

502

6

503

7

503

8

501

3

502

5

505

9

501

4

STAIRS UP

STAGGERED 2x12
BLOCKING @ MIDSPAN
OVER BEARING WALL

HU212-2 HANGER

H
-3

H-3

(30) 10d's PER END
OF HEADER

HEADER TO BEAR
MIN. 4" PAST
CORNER

BOTH MEZZANINES DESIGNED FOR
135 PSF TOTAL LOADING

502

6b

TB36
BRIDGING

10/16/2023

33



ENG. BY :

PSC :

DRAWN BY :

MTO BY :

FBi PROJECT # :

SHEET :

LCS_LLC

XX

Josh S.

Anthony P.

20-1667-00

C
T

O
15

60
 S

 8
th

 S
t.

Ka
la

m
az

oo
, M

I  
49

00
9

B
Y

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
O

.
D

A
TE

1
20

23
-0

9-
26

LC
S_

LL
C

D
ra

ft 
fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

re
vi

ew
2

20
23

-0
9-

28
LC

S_
LL

C
Pe

rm
it 

Se
t

3
20

23
-0

9-
29

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
re

vi
si

on
s)

4
20

23
-1

0-
11

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. C

O
A

P1
00

62
3,

 in
te

rio
r c

ha
ng

es
)

5
20

23
-1

0-
13

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
 re

vi
si

on
s &

 a
dd

l i
nt

er
io

r c
ha

ng
es

)
.....

501

MEZZANINE SECTION @ EXPOSURE ROOM & EMPLOYEE LOCKERS
4

SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

T/ F.F.
100'-0"

8
'-0

"

TREATED 2x6 SILL PLATE
W/ SILL SEALER

LAMINATED COLUMN

9
'-0

"

B/ DECK
109'-0"

T/ DECK &
110'-0"

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF CONCRETE

MAX-RIB STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

FINISH FLOOR BY
PURCHASER

2x12 FLOOR   JOISTS @ 16" O.C.

23
32" T&G OSB DECKING

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF
CONCRETE

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

AJ-21 TRIM

2x12 BLOCKING BETWEEN
JOISTS @ MIDSPAN OVER
BEARING WALL

MAX-RIB STEEL LINER

SPF 2x6 BOTTOM
PLATE FASTENED TO
DECK W/ (3) 10d's
PER JOIST

(2) SPF 2x6 TOP PLATE
(SEE STUDWALL
CEILING DETAIL FOR
FASTENING SPEC)

AJ-31 TRIM

R-PANEL STEEL CEILING
W/ VISQUEEN

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

2x4 GIRTS @ 48" o.c.

AJ-31 TRIM

SPF 2x6 STUDS @
16" o.c.

TREATED 2x6 BOTTOM
PLATE FASTENED TO
CONCRETE W/ CONCRETE
SCREWS @ 36" o.c.

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF CONCRETE

MAX-RIB STEEL LINER

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF
CONCRETE

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

AJ-21 TRIM

TOE-NAIL EACH JOIST TO
TOP PLATE W/ (3) 10d's

JOIST LAYOUT MUST ALIGN
WITH STUD LAYOUT

MAX-RIB STEEL LINER

(2) SPF 2x6 TOP PLATE

2x12 RIM JOIST FASTENED TO END OF
EACH JOIST W/ (4) 10d's & TOE-NAILED
TO TOP PLATE W/ (1) 10d @ 6" O.C.

SPF 2x6 STUDS @
16" o.c.

SPF 2x6 STUDS @
16" o.c.

TREATED 2x6 BOTTOM
PLATE FASTENED TO
CONCRETE W/ CONCRETE
SCREWS @ 36" o.c.

(2) SPF 2x6 TOP PLATE

501

MEZZANINE SECTION @ SCREEN WASH-OUT & RESTROOM
3

SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

T/ F.F.
100'-0"

8
'-0

"
9

'-0
"

2x12 FLOOR   JOISTS @ 16" O.C.

MAX-RIB STEEL
CEILING

2x12 BLOCKING BETWEEN
JOISTS @ MIDSPAN OVER
BEARING WALL

SPF 2x6 BOTTOM
PLATE FASTENED TO
DECK W/ (3) 10d's
PER JOIST

(2) SPF 2x6 TOP PLATE
(SEE STUDWALL
CEILING DETAIL FOR
FASTENING SPEC)

AJ-31 TRIM

R-PANEL STEEL CEILING
W/ VISQUEEN

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

2x4 GIRTS @ 48" o.c.

AJ-31 TRIM

SPF 2x6 STUDS @
16" o.c.

TREATED 2x6 BOTTOM
PLATE FASTENED TO
CONCRETE W/ CONCRETE
SCREWS @ 36" o.c.

(2) SPF 2x6 TOP PLATE

 J-CHANNEL LU210 JOIST HANGER

2-PLY 2x12 HEADER
(H-3) OVER OPEN WALL

CEILING FINISH BY
PURCHASER

INTERIOR WALL FINISH BY
PURCHASER IN THIS ROOM

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

AJ-21 TRIM

MAX-RIB STEEL CEILING MAX-RIB STEEL CEILING

 J-CHANNEL

Z-TRIM HEIGHT

Z-TRIM (PBFA) ON ADDED GIRT

6" (R-19) UNFACED BATT
INSULATION W/ BLACK
VISQUEEN

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 48" o.c.

SPF 2x6 CAVITY
BLOCKING

SEE PARTITION WALL
CONNECTION DETAIL

LU210 JOIST HANGER
(SEE DETAIL)

2x12 RIM JOIST
FASTENED TO EACH
COLUMN W/ (30) 10d'sSYP 2x4 BEARING

BLOCK TIGHT UNDER
HEADER W/ (15) 10d's

STEEL BRACKET (SEE
COLUMN SCHEDULE
ON SHEET 201)

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

Z-TRIM HEIGHT
110'-0"

Z-TRIM (PBFA) ON
ADDED GIRT

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

TREATED 2x6 SILL PLATE
W/ SILL SEALER

LAMINATED COLUMN

B/ DECK
109'-0"

T/ DECK &
110'-0"

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF CONCRETE

MAX-RIB STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

FINISH FLOOR BY
PURCHASER

23
32" T&G OSB DECKING

KEEP 2x4 OFF
CONCRETE

2x4 GIRTS @ 24" o.c.

Z-TRIM HEIGHT

Z-TRIM (PBFA) ON ADDED GIRT

6" (R-19) UNFACED BATT
INSULATION W/ BLACK
VISQUEEN

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 48" o.c.

SPF 2x6 CAVITY
BLOCKING

SEE PARTITION WALL
CONNECTION DETAIL

LU210 JOIST HANGER
(SEE DETAIL)

2x12 RIM JOIST
FASTENED TO EACH
COLUMN W/ (30) 10d's

SYP 2x4 BEARING
BLOCK TIGHT UNDER
HEADER W/ (15) 10d's

STEEL BRACKET (SEE
COLUMN SCHEDULE
ON SHEET 201)

AJ-31 TRIM
AJ-31 TRIM

AJ-31 TRIM
AJ-31 TRIM

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

SPF 2x6 STUDS @
16" o.c.

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

Z-TRIM HEIGHT
110'-0"

Z-TRIM (PBFA) ON
ADDED GIRT
STANDARD LINER

6" (R-19) KRAFT-FACED
BATT INSULATION
W/ BLACK  VISQUEEN

6" (R-19) KRAFT-FACED
BATT INSULATION
W/ BLACK  VISQUEEN

6" (R-19) KRAFT-FACED
BATT INSULATION
W/ BLACK  VISQUEEN

6" (R-19) KRAFT-FACED
BATT INSULATION

SE
A

L

501

S
H

EE
T 

TI
TL

E:

IN
TE

RI
OR

 W
AL

L 
SE

CT
IO

NS

COPYRIGHT  FBi Buildings, Inc.

10/16/2023

34



ENG. BY :

PSC :

DRAWN BY :

MTO BY :

FBi PROJECT # :

SHEET :

LCS_LLC

XX

Josh S.

Anthony P.

20-1667-00

C
T

O
15

60
 S

 8
th

 S
t.

Ka
la

m
az

oo
, M

I  
49

00
9

B
Y

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
O

.
D

A
TE

1
20

23
-0

9-
26

LC
S_

LL
C

D
ra

ft 
fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

re
vi

ew
2

20
23

-0
9-

28
LC

S_
LL

C
Pe

rm
it 

Se
t

3
20

23
-0

9-
29

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
re

vi
si

on
s)

4
20

23
-1

0-
11

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. C

O
A

P1
00

62
3,

 in
te

rio
r c

ha
ng

es
)

5
20

23
-1

0-
13

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
 re

vi
si

on
s &

 a
dd

l i
nt

er
io

r c
ha

ng
es

)
.....

2x4 BCT

TREATED 2x6 BOTTOM PLATE
FASTENED TO CONCRETE W/
CONCRETE SCREWS @ 36" o.c.

SPF 2x6 STUDS @ 16" o.c.

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF CONCRETE

MAX-RIB STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

AJ-31 TRIM

FINISH FLOOR BY
PURCHASER

T/ F.F.
100'-0"

(2) SPF 2x6 TOP PLATE (SEE
STUDWALL CEILING DETAIL
FOR FASTENING SPEC)

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF CONCRETE

MAX-RIB STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

AJ-31 TRIM

502

PARTITION SECTION
6

SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

B/ TRUSS
118'-0"

B/ TRUSS
118'-0"

502

MEZZANINE SECTION @ SCREEN WASH-OUT & EXPOSURE ROOM
5

SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

T/ F.F.
100'-0"

8
'-0

"

TREATED 2x6 BOTTOM PLATE
FASTENED TO CONCRETE W/
CONCRETE SCREWS @ 36" o.c.

SPF 2x6 STUDS @ 16" o.c.

(2) SPF 2x6 TOP PLATE

9
'-0

"

B/ DECK
109'-0"

T/ DECK
110'-0"

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 48" o.c.

AJ-31 TRIM

R-PANEL STEEL CEILING
W/ VISQUEEN

FINISH FLOOR BY
PURCHASER

8" (R-25) UNFACED BATT
INSULATION W/ BLACK
VISQUEEN

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF CONCRETE

MAX-RIB STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

R-PANEL STEEL CEILING
W/ VISQUEEN

FINISH FLOOR BY
PURCHASER

2x12 RIM JOIST TOE-NAILED TO
TOP PLATE W/ (1) 10d @ 6" O.C.

2x12 FLOOR JOISTS
@ 16" O.C.

23
32" T&G OSB DECKING

MAX-RIB STEEL CEILING

T/ GUARDRAIL
114'-6 34"

J-CHANNEL @ TOP OF DECK (NOTCH
@ EACH GUARDRAIL VERTICAL)

SEE GUARDRAIL DETAIL FOR
SPECIFICATIONS

SYP 2x6 BLOCKING @ EACH
GUARDRAIL VERTICAL

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF
CONCRETE

MAX-RIB STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

AJ-21 TRIM

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF
CONCRETE

MAX-RIB STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

AJ-21 TRIM

2x4 BLOCKING @ 48"
O.C. MAX

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF
CONCRETE

MAX-RIB STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

AJ-21 TRIM

TREATED 2x6 BOTTOM PLATE
FASTENED TO CONCRETE W/
CONCRETE SCREWS @ 36" o.c.

SPF 2x6 STUDS @ 16" o.c.

(2) SPF 2x6 TOP PLATE

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF
CONCRETE

MAX-RIB STEEL
LINER

2x4 GIRTS @
40" o.c.

AJ-21 TRIM
MAX-RIB STEEL CEILING

6" (R-19) KRAFT-FACED
BATT INSULATION
W/ BLACK  VISQUEEN

Z-TRIM HEIGHT
110'-0"

Z-TRIM (PBFA) ON ADDED GIRT

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

Z-TRIM HEIGHT
110'-0"

Z-TRIM (PBFA) ON
ADDED GIRT

2x4 GIRTS @ 48" o.c.

6" (R-19)
KRAFT-FACED
BATT INSULATION

FULL DEPTH JOIST
BLOCKING @ 48" O.C.

TREATED 2x6 SILL PLATE W/
SILL SEALER

LAMINATED COLUMN

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF CONCRETE

MAX-RIB STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

AJ-31 TRIM

FINISH FLOOR BY
PURCHASER

T/ F.F.
100'-0"

SPF 2x6 CAVITY BLOCK

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF CONCRETE

MAX-RIB STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

AJ-31 TRIM

502

PARTITION SECTION
6b

SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

B/ TRUSS
118'-0"

6" (R-19) UNFACED BATT
INSULATION W/ BLACK
VISQUEEN

Z-TRIM HEIGHT
110'-0"

Z-TRIM (PBFA) ON ADDED GIRT

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

Z-TRIM HEIGHT
110'-0"

Z-TRIM (PBFA) ON
ADDED GIRT

2x4 GIRTS @ 48" o.c.

STEEL BRACKET (SEE
COLUMN SCHEDULE
ON SHEET 201)

SEE PARTITION WALL
CONNECTION DETAIL

SE
A

L

502

S
H

EE
T 

TI
TL

E:

IN
TE

RI
OR

 W
AL

L 
SE

CT
IO

NS

COPYRIGHT  FBi Buildings, Inc.

10/16/2023

35



ENG. BY :

PSC :

DRAWN BY :

MTO BY :

FBi PROJECT # :

SHEET :

LCS_LLC

XX

Josh S.

Anthony P.

20-1667-00

C
T

O
15

60
 S

 8
th

 S
t.

Ka
la

m
az

oo
, M

I  
49

00
9

B
Y

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
O

.
D

A
TE

1
20

23
-0

9-
26

LC
S_

LL
C

D
ra

ft 
fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

re
vi

ew
2

20
23

-0
9-

28
LC

S_
LL

C
Pe

rm
it 

Se
t

3
20

23
-0

9-
29

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
re

vi
si

on
s)

4
20

23
-1

0-
11

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. C

O
A

P1
00

62
3,

 in
te

rio
r c

ha
ng

es
)

5
20

23
-1

0-
13

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
 re

vi
si

on
s &

 a
dd

l i
nt

er
io

r c
ha

ng
es

)
.....

B/ TRUSS
118'-0"

503

MEZZANINE SECTION @ EMBROIDERY ROOM
8

SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

T/ F.F.
100'-0"

7
'-2

1 4
"

TREATED 2x6 BOTTOM PLATE
FASTENED TO CONCRETE W/
CONCRETE SCREWS @ 36" o.c.

SPF 2x6 STUDS @ 16" o.c.

(2) SPF 2x6 TOP PLATE

8
'-9

"

B/ DECK
108'-9"

T/ DECK
110'-9 34"

THICKENED SLAB, SEE DETAILS
ON SHEET 100

SPF 2x6 BOTTOM PLATE FASTENED
TO DECK W/ (3) 10d's PER JOIST

(2) SPF 2x6 TOP PLATE (SEE STUDWALL
CEILING DETAIL FOR FASTENING SPEC)

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 48" o.c.

AJ-31 TRIM

R-PANEL STEEL CEILING
W/ VISQUEEN

FINISH FLOOR BY
PURCHASER

8" (R-25) UNFACED BATT
INSULATION W/ BLACK
VISQUEEN

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF CONCRETE

MAX-RIB STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

AJ-31 TRIM

R-PANEL STEEL CEILING
W/ VISQUEEN

FINISH FLOOR BY
PURCHASER

1.5" x 24" LVL RIM JOIST
FASTENED TO END OF
EACH JOIST W/ (4) 10d's &
TOE-NAILED TO TOP PLATE
W/ (1) 10d @ 6" O.C.

TOE-NAIL EACH JOIST TO
TOP PLATE W/ (3) 10d's

BRIDGING @ MIDSPAN
(SEE DETAIL)

1.5" x 24" LVL FLOOR   JOISTS @ 16" O.C.

23
32" T&G OSB DECKING

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 48" o.c.

AJ-31 TRIM

SPF 2x6 STUDS @ 16" o.c.

INTERIOR WALL FINISH
BY PURCHASER

INTERIOR WALL FINISH
BY PURCHASER

2x4 GIRTS @ 24" o.c.

HU216 JOIST HANGER
(SEE DETAIL)

1.5" x 24" LVL RIM JOIST FASTENED
TO EACH COLUMN W/ (55) 10d's

SYP 2x4 BEARING BLOCK TIGHT
UNDER RIM JOIST W/ (50) 10d's

CEILING FINISH BY
PURCHASER

JOIST LAYOUT MUST ALIGN
WITH STUD LAYOUT

T/ F.F.
100'-0"

503

MEZZANINE SECTION @ WEST END
7

SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

B/ DECK
108'-9"

T/ DECK
110'-9 34"

8
'-9

"

23
32" T&G OSB
DECKING

CEILING FINISH
BY PURCHASER

T/ GUARDRAIL
114'-3 34"

TREATED 2x6 BOTTOM PLATE
FASTENED TO CONCRETE W/
CONCRETE SCREWS @ 36" o.c.

SPF 2x6 STUDS @ 16" o.c.

(2) SPF 2x6 TOP PLATE

THICKENED SLAB, SEE DETAILS
ON SHEET 100

AJ-13 BASE TRIM

KEEP 2x4 OFF CONCRETE

MAX-RIB STEEL LINER

2x4 GIRTS @ 40" o.c.

FINISH FLOOR BY
PURCHASER

1.5" x 24" LVL RIM JOIST
FASTENED TO END OF EACH JOIST
W/ (4) 10d's & TOE-NAILED TO TOP
PLATE W/ (1) 10d @ 6" O.C.

TOE-NAIL EACH
JOIST TO TOP
PLATE W/ (3) 10d's

INTERIOR WALL
FINISH BY
PURCHASER

J-CHANNEL @ TOP OF DECK (NOTCH
@ EACH GUARDRAIL VERTICAL)

SEE GUARDRAIL DETAIL FOR
SPECIFICATIONS

SYP 2x6 BLOCKING @ EACH
GUARDRAIL VERTICAL

7
'-2

1 4
"6" (R-19) KRAFT-FACED

BATT INSULATION
W/ BLACK  VISQUEEN

Z-TRIM HEIGHT
110'-0"

Z-TRIM (PBFA) ON ADDED GIRT

2x4 GIRTS @ 48" o.c.

MAX-RIB ACOUSTICAL
STEEL LINER

6" (R-19) KRAFT-FACED
BATT INSULATION

FULL DEPTH JOIST
BLOCKING @ 48" O.C.

SE
A

L

503

S
H

EE
T 

TI
TL

E:

IN
TE

RI
OR

 W
AL

L 
SE

CT
IO

NS

COPYRIGHT  FBi Buildings, Inc.

10/16/2023

36



ENG. BY :

PSC :

DRAWN BY :

MTO BY :

FBi PROJECT # :

SHEET :

LCS_LLC

XX

Josh S.

Anthony P.

20-1667-00

C
T

O
15

60
 S

 8
th

 S
t.

Ka
la

m
az

oo
, M

I  
49

00
9

B
Y

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
O

.
D

A
TE

1
20

23
-0

9-
26

LC
S_

LL
C

D
ra

ft 
fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

re
vi

ew
2

20
23

-0
9-

28
LC

S_
LL

C
Pe

rm
it 

Se
t

3
20

23
-0

9-
29

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
re

vi
si

on
s)

4
20

23
-1

0-
11

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. C

O
A

P1
00

62
3,

 in
te

rio
r c

ha
ng

es
)

5
20

23
-1

0-
13

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
 re

vi
si

on
s &

 a
dd

l i
nt

er
io

r c
ha

ng
es

)
.....

2x4 SYP #1 VERTICAL
@ 48" o.c.

SPF #2 2x4 MID-GIRT
(ONLY ONE MID-GIRT
REQUIRED FOR "F" & "S"
OCCUPANCIES)

SPF #2 2x4 TOE BOARD
(2) GUARDRAIL BRACKETS PER
VERTICAL STILE, FASTEN TO
RIM W/ (4) STRUCTURAL-S
SCREWS PER BRACKET RIM JO

IST

1 14" Ø HANDRAIL AND BRACKET ASSEMBLY
ON EACH SIDE OF STAIRS SHALL MEET
LOCAL REQUIREMENTS (HANDRAIL SHALL BE
PROVIDED & INSTALLED BY OWNER)

2x4 MID-GIRT (ONLY ONE
MID-GIRT REQUIRED FOR
"F" & "S" OCCUPANCIES)

2x4 FASTENED FLUSH W/
BOTTOM OF CARRIAGE FOR
FULL LENGTH OF STRINGER

TREATED 2x4 FASTENED TO FLOOR W/ (3)
CONCRETE SCREWS TO BRACE BOTTOM OF
STAIR (NOTCH CARRIAGE AROUND 2x4, BUT
DO NOT NOTCH STRINGER)

2x4 CAP & TOP GIRT

2x12 TREAD W/ 12" NOSING

RIPPED 2x8 RISER

SOLID 2x12 STRINGER

2x4 SYP #1 VERTICAL
@ 3'-9" o.c. MAX

FULL DEPTH SYP 2x6
BLOCKING BEHIND RIM
JOIST TO ACCEPT
STRUCTURAL-S SCREWS

STAIR FRAMING DETAIL
SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

5"

4'-0"

3
'-6

"

3
'-6

"

3
'-0

"

TO
P O

F T
READ NOSING

TO
P O

F G
UARDRAIL

TO
P O

F H
ANDRAIL

NOTCHED 2x12 CARRIAGE

BRACKET W/ (4) STRUCTURAL-S
SCREWS (PRE-DRILL HOLES THRU
STRINGER & INTO END OF TREAD)

BRACKET W/ (4) STRUCTURAL-S
SCREWS INTO STRINGER/CARRIAGE

IMPORTANT:
STAIRS SHALL BE BUILT
AFTER INTERIOR WALL
FINISH IS INSTALLED

SYP 2x4 FASTENED TO
BOTTOM OF RIM JOIST W/ (1)
STRUCTURAL-L @ 12" o.c.

SIMPSON LSCZ HANGER
@ EACH CARRIAGE, SEE
TABLE ON PG. A-501
FOR FASTENERS

GUARDRAIL FRAMING DETAIL
SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

2x4 CAP &
TOP GIRT

RIM JOIST

FULL-DEPTH JOIST
BLOCKING @ 48" o.c.

JOIST (TYP.)

LANDING

DECKING MUST BE
FASTENED INTO RIM
JOIST @ 2" o.c. WITHIN
12" OF EACH VERTICAL

110'-3"
T/ LANDING

UPPERMOST VERTICAL
FASTENED TO RIM W/
(8) 10d NAILS

5"

4'-0"

CL

CL

CL

CL

(17) 6 13
16" RISERS

(17) 11 14" TREADS

10 34"

6
 1

3
1
6
"

11 14" BOARD

6 34" BOARD

STAIRS SHALL MEASURE
3'-6" WIDE FROM INSIDE
OF STRINGERS

LSCZ CARRIAGE CONNECTOR
SCALE: 2" = 1'-0"

(8) SD#9 x 1 12" SCREWS
INTO THE CARRIAGE

(8) SD#9 x 1 12" SCREWS
INTO THE RIM JOIST

(1) SD#9 x 1 12" SCREWS
INTO THE CARRIAGE

LEAVE 1 14" GAP BETWEEN
TRUSS & STUD WALL (TYP.)

AJ-31 TRIM (STITCH
SCREW TO AJ-31 IF FLAT
IN TRIM)

DO NOT FASTEN STEEL
CEILING TO TRUSS @
STUD WALL

DO NOT FASTEN STEEL
CEILING TO TRUSS @
STUD WALL

NOTE:
HTC4 FASTENED W/ (6) 10d
NAILS IN TOP PLATE & (3) 10d
NAILS IN TRUSS (DO NOT
DRIVE NAILS FLUSH TO ALLOW
FOR VERTICAL MOVEMENT)

HTC4 TRUSS CLIP (PLACE
TRUSS FASTENERS 14"
FROM TOP OF SLOT)

LEAVE 1 14" GAP BETWEEN
TRUSS & STUD WALL (TYP.)

AJ-31 TRIM

HTC4 TRUSS CLIP (PLACE
TRUSS FASTENERS 14"
FROM TOP OF SLOT)

SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

STUD WALL W/ STEEL CEILING PARALLEL TO TRUSS

NOTE:
HTC4 FASTENED W/ (6) 10d
NAILS IN TOP PLATE & (3) 10d
NAILS IN TRUSS (DO NOT
DRIVE NAILS FLUSH TO ALLOW
FOR VERTICAL MOVEMENT)

2x6 RAN BETWEEN TRUSSES @ 8'-0" o.c.
FASTENED TO TRUSS BOTTOM CHORD
W/ LU26 JOIST HANGER

TRUSS BOTTOM CHORD

SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

STUD WALL W/ STEEL CEILING PERPENDICULAR TO TRUSS

(6) #9 x 1 

(10) #9 x 1 

LEAVE 1 14" GAP BETWEEN
TRUSS & BEARING PLY (TYP.)

AJ-31 TRIM (STITCH
SCREW TO AJ-31 IF FLAT
IN TRIM)

2x4 SPF BLOCK EACH SIDE OF
COLUMN FASTENED W/ (3) 10d
NAILS (DO NOT FASTEN COLUMN
TO TRUSS)

DO NOT FASTEN STEEL
CEILING TO TRUSS @
PARTITION WALL

SCALE: 1/2"=1'-0"

PARTITION WALL W/ STEEL CEILING PERPENDICULAR TO TRUSS

LEAVE 1 14" GAP
BETWEEN BOTTOM OF
2x6 JOIST & TOP OF
CENTER COLUMN PLY

AJ-31 TRIM

SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

PARTITION WALL SLIP CONNECTION

2x6 JOIST RAN BETWEEN TRUSSES @
EACH PARTITION COLUMN - FASTEN TO
TRUSS BOTTOM CHORD W/ LU26 JOIST
HANGER

2x4 SPF BLOCK EACH SIDE
OF COLUMN FASTENED W/ (3)
10d NAILS (DO NOT FASTEN
2x6 JOIST TO COLUMN)

TRUSS BOTTOM CHORD

TRUSS BOTTOM CHORD

SE
A

L

504

S
H

EE
T 

TI
TL

E:

IN
TE

RI
OR

 W
AL

L 
SE

CT
IO

NS

COPYRIGHT  FBi Buildings, Inc.

10/16/2023

37



ENG. BY :

PSC :

DRAWN BY :

MTO BY :

FBi PROJECT # :

SHEET :

LCS_LLC

XX

Josh S.

Anthony P.

20-1667-00

C
T

O
15

60
 S

 8
th

 S
t.

Ka
la

m
az

oo
, M

I  
49

00
9

B
Y

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
O

.
D

A
TE

1
20

23
-0

9-
26

LC
S_

LL
C

D
ra

ft 
fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

re
vi

ew
2

20
23

-0
9-

28
LC

S_
LL

C
Pe

rm
it 

Se
t

3
20

23
-0

9-
29

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
re

vi
si

on
s)

4
20

23
-1

0-
11

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. C

O
A

P1
00

62
3,

 in
te

rio
r c

ha
ng

es
)

5
20

23
-1

0-
13

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
 re

vi
si

on
s &

 a
dd

l i
nt

er
io

r c
ha

ng
es

)
.....

B/ DECK
108'-9"

T/ DECK
110'-9 34"

2-PLY 1.5" x 24" LVL RIM JOIST TO
SERVE AS HEADER OVER 16FT WINDOW
OPENING W/ MINIMUM (2) BEARING
STUDS UNDER EACH END OF HEADER

HU216 JOIST HANGER
(SEE DETAIL)

HU216 JOIST HANGER
(SEE DETAIL)

2-PLY 1.5" x 24" LVL RIM JOIST,
INNER PLY FASTENED TO EACH
COLUMN W/ (55) 10d's

SYP 2x4 BEARING BLOCKS TIGHT
UNDER RIM JOIST W/ (50) 10d's

(H-1) HEADER DETAIL
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

(H-2) HEADER DETAIL
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

NON-BEARING STUD WALL HEADER DETAIL (TYP.)

SECTION VIEW

FRONT VIEW

TOP PLATE

CRIPPLES

(2) 2x8 HEADER
BOXED OUT W/
2x6 @ TOP &
BOTTOM
JACK TIGHT
UNDER HEADER

2x6 - 16" o.c. CRIPPLES (2) 2x6 TOP PLATE

2x6 - 16" o.c. STUDS

(3) 10d's THRU STUD
& INTO EACH PLY OF
HEADER

2x6 CAP W/ (1) 10d @
6" o.c. INTO EACH 2x8

HEADER

2x6 BASE W/ (1) 10d @
6" o.c. INTO EACH 2x8

2x6 JACK TIGHT
UNDER HEADER

T/ F.F.
100'-0"

B/ DECK
108'-9"

T/ DECK
110'-9 34"

T/ WALL
117'-10 34"

505

STUD WALL FRAMING ELEVATION @ EMBROIDERY AREA
9

SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

16'-0"

4
'-6

"

40 5/16"

8
1
"

2-PLY 1.5" x 24" LVL RIM JOIST TO SERVE AS (H-1)
HEADER OVER WINDOW & DOOR OPENING W/ MINIMUM

(2) BEARING STUDS UNDER EACH END OF HEADER

2x8 BOX HEADER2x8 BOX HEADER

2x6 JACK TIGHT
UNDER HEADER

DOUBLE 2x6
KING STUD

2x6 JACK TIGHT
UNDER HEADER

DOUBLE 2x6
KING STUD

2x6 JACK TIGHT
UNDER HEADER

SPF 2x6 STUDS @ 16" o.c.

SPF 2x6 STUDS @ 16" o.c.

SE
A

L

505

S
H

EE
T 

TI
TL

E:

IN
TE

RI
OR

 W
AL

L 
SE

CT
IO

NS

COPYRIGHT  FBi Buildings, Inc.

10/16/2023

38



C
T

O
15

60
 S

 8
th

 S
t.

Ka
la

m
az

oo
, M

I  
49

00
9

ENG. BY :

PSC :

DRAWN BY :

MTO BY :

FBi PROJECT # :

SHEET :

LCS_LLC

XX

Josh S.

Anthony P.

20-1667-00

B
Y

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
O

.
D

A
TE

1
20

23
-0

9-
26

LC
S_

LL
C

D
ra

ft 
fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

re
vi

ew
2

20
23

-0
9-

28
LC

S_
LL

C
Pe

rm
it 

Se
t

3
20

23
-0

9-
29

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
re

vi
si

on
s)

4
20

23
-1

0-
11

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. C

O
A

P1
00

62
3,

 in
te

rio
r c

ha
ng

es
)

5
20

23
-1

0-
13

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
 re

vi
si

on
s &

 a
dd

l i
nt

er
io

r c
ha

ng
es

)
.....

END TRUSS

RAKE TRIM (P-OC)

ALWAYS HAVE RIB
UNDER RAKE OR BEND
FLAT OF STEEL UP W/
3

4" LIP

APPLY BEAD OF CAULK
UNDER RAKE @ SCREW
LOCATIONS

2x4 PURLIN BLOCKING

118'-0"
B/ TRUSS

600

GABLE END SECTION
2

SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

END COLUMN TOP

2x6 SYP "BCT CONNECTOR"
FASTENED TO EACH BCT W/ (5) 10d
NAILS - SPLICES LOCATED ON
"COLUMN END TOP" (AS NEEDED)

2x4 BCT @ EACH
COLUMN/STUB

WIND BRACE

WINDOW "F" HEADER DETAIL
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

B/ TRUSS

(3) 2x12 HEADER W/
(27) 10d @ STUB
(30) 10d @ POST

118'-0"

WINDOW "H" HEADER DETAIL
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

B/ TRUSS

2x8 SYP W/ 10d NAILS
@4"o.c. EACH SIDE

(2) 16" LVL HEADER W/
(45) 10d @ STUB
(45) 10d @ POST

118'-0"

STUB W/ CENTER
SLOT FOR TRUSS

STUB W/ CENTER
SLOT FOR TRUSS

INSULATE HEADER

B/ TRUSS
2x8 SYP W/ 10d NAILS
@4"o.c. EACH SIDE

(4) 2x12 HEADER W/
(27) 10d @ STUB
(30) 10d @ POST

DOOR #4 HEADER DETAIL
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

113'-11 12"

118'-0"

B/ HEADER

2x4 SPF CONTINUOUS OUTSIDE
NAILER FASTENED W/ (2) 10d
NAILS @12" o.c.

2x6 SYP CONTINUOUS JAMB
BACKER

2x4 SYP

2x12 SYP BLOCKING

INSTALL (2) INSIDE PLIES
BEFORE LIFTING - INSTALL
REMAINING PLIES AFTER LIFTING

OHD STUB TOP

OHD STUB MIDDLE 2x4 SYP BLOCKING

INSULATE HEADER

2x8 SYP W/ 10d NAILS
@24"o.c. EACH SIDE

T/ WINDOW
FIELD VERIFY

2x6/2x8/2x6 @
WINDOW HEAD

INSULATE HEADER

T/ WINDOW
FIELD VERIFY

2x4/2x8/2x4 @
WINDOW HEAD

ALL GIRTS BELOW WINDOW SILL
MUST BE REINFORCED WITH A 2x4
APPLIED FLAT TO THE TOP OF THE
ENTIRE SPAN W/ (1) 10d @ 12" O.C.

OFFSET PERMA-COLUMN

3-PLY TOP

GRADE BOARD GRADE BOARD

GAP BETWEEN
STUB & TOP

HEADER

AFTER BUILDING IS
LIFTED 5th PLY ADDED
TO THIS SIDE OF
COLUMN W/ (2) 10d
NAILS @ 8" o.c.

5th PLY FASTENED
ABOVE HEADER W/
(15) 10d NAILS

HEADERB/ TRUSS @ 103'-6"
BEFORE LIFTING

LOWERED RAISED

OHD COLUMN DETAIL
SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

1. Place inside face of offset jamb stub
flush with inside edge of door opening
with bracket away from door opening.

2. Set 3-Ply laminated column in pocket
of  PC and fasten with structural
screws.

3. Drill holes for bolts.
4. Set 4' block on top of concrete and

tap  against screw heads.  Remove
and use drill  to "countersink" holes for
screw heads.

5. Place block against column on top of
concrete stub and fasten with (10)
10d air nails.

6. Drill holes in block for bolts.
7. Insert carriage bolts through all four

plies.  Tighten until head of bolt is
flush with jamb.

8. Cut SYP block to fit tight to
block/underside of the following:

-Beam or header for sliding doors;
-Truss for overhead doors.  Fasten 

with (2) 10d nails @ 8" o.c.
9. Set header and truss per specs.

NOTES:

OFFSET PERMA-COLUMN

3-PLY STANDARD MIDDLE

4' PRE-CUT BLOCK W/ 1/2"
NOTCH FOR BRACKET

CREW TO FILL IN ABOVE 4'
BLOCK PER NOTES

(4) STRUCTURAL-S SCREWS
THROUGH 3 PLIES (EACH
SIDE OF COLUMN)

(2) 12" x 7" CARRIAGE BOLTS
THROUGH ALL 4 PLIES

OHD INTERIOR FINISH ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

NOTE: THIS IS A GENERIC DEPICTION OF THE
INTERIOR ELEVATION. ACTUAL SIZES MAY VARY.

FLAT COIL

FLAT COIL

J-CHANNEL
FROM FIN. FLOOR
TO CEILING

PA-FLASH
OVERHEAD DOOR
ROUGH OPENING

PERMA-COLUMN EXTENDER DETAIL
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

DIG HOLE SPECIFIED
ON PAD SCHEDULE

PERMA-COLUMN STUB

FILL HOLE W/ READY-MIX
CONCRETE TO 2" ABOVE BASE
OF PERMA-COLUMN

NOTE:
MAKE SURE TO GET COMPLETE
FILL UNDER PERMA-COLUMN

SET EXTENDER ON TOP OF 16"Ø
COMPOSITE FOOTING DISK

INSTALLED W/ TAPERED
SURFACE FACING UP

12" x 4" x 316" STEEL
EXTENDER ASSEMBLY

1
2" Ø G8 BOLT TO
CONNECT EXTENDER
TO PERMA-COLUMN

SE
A

L

600

S
H

EE
T 

TI
TL

E:

W
AL

L 
SE

CT
IO

N 
DE

TA
IL

S

COPYRIGHT  FBi Buildings, Inc.

10/16/2023

39



C
T

O
15

60
 S

 8
th

 S
t.

Ka
la

m
az

oo
, M

I  
49

00
9

ENG. BY :

PSC :

DRAWN BY :

MTO BY :

FBi PROJECT # :

SHEET :

LCS_LLC

XX

Josh S.

Anthony P.

20-1667-00

B
Y

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
O

.
D

A
TE

1
20

23
-0

9-
26

LC
S_

LL
C

D
ra

ft 
fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

re
vi

ew
2

20
23

-0
9-

28
LC

S_
LL

C
Pe

rm
it 

Se
t

3
20

23
-0

9-
29

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
re

vi
si

on
s)

4
20

23
-1

0-
11

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. C

O
A

P1
00

62
3,

 in
te

rio
r c

ha
ng

es
)

5
20

23
-1

0-
13

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
 re

vi
si

on
s &

 a
dd

l i
nt

er
io

r c
ha

ng
es

)
.....

601

BREEZEWAY SECTION
12

SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

T/ F.F.
100'-0"

PROPOSED EXISTING

2x4 CEILING NAILERS @ 24" O.C.

SYP 2x8 INTERMEDIATE NAILER @
FACE OF EXISITING PORCH

SOFFIT CEILING (NON-VENTED)

SOFFIT J-CHANNEL
AGAINST EXISTING
TRANSOM WINDOW
HEAD

F & J CHANNEL

END TRUSS, FASTEN PEAK TO
HEADER W/ (30) 10d's, FASTEN
BOTTOM CHORD TO HEADER
W/ (4) 10d's @ 12" O.C.

2x12 HEADER @ PEAK,
FASTEN TO EACH
COLUMN W/ (30) 10d's

2x12 HEADER @ BASE,
FASTEN TO EACH
COLUMN W/ (30) 10d's

AJ-10 FLASH W/
J-CHANNEL

AJ-10 FLASH W/
J-CHANNEL

2x4 PURLINS (FLAT)
ACROSS NEW &
EXISTING BREEZEWAY

B/ CEILING FRAMING
108'-11"

601

BREEZEWAY SECTION @ EXISTING
10

SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

2x4 PURLINS (LAY FLAT)

MAX-RIB STEEL ROOFING
FASTENED W/ SCREWS

6" GUTTER

1x3 W/ GUTTER BACKER
TRIM

2x8 BARGE BOARD

5x8 FLASH BELOW ROOF
& ATOP GUTTER BACKER
TRIM

12

12

STEEL RIDGE W/ VENTED
GASKETS (HOLD RIDGE
PURLINS DOWN 1")

2x4 CEILING NAILERS @ 24" O.C.

SOFFIT CEILING (NON-VENTED)

F & J CHANNEL

MAX-RIB STEEL RIBBON ON
NEW 2x4 GIRTS W/ FL-1

FLASH & DRIP CAP @ BASE
MAX-RIB STEEL RIBBON

FL-1 FLASH & DRIP CAP

SOLID SOFFIT ON BASE
OF RIBBON

EXISTING ROOF STRUCTURE
TO BE RE-COVERED BY FBi

B/ RIBBON FRAMING
107'-2"

26'-4"

13'-6"

20'-01
2"

COMMON TRUSS CENTERED
IN BREEZEWAY SPAN, FASTEN
TO EACH SUPPORTING POST
W/ (10) 10d's

SPF 2x6 PURLIN BRACE
FASTENED TO THE SIDE
OF EACH FLAT PURLIN
W/ (1) 10d @ 24" O.C.

601

BREEZEWAY SECTION @ NEW
11

SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

2x4 PURLINS (LAY FLAT)

MAX-RIB STEEL ROOFING
FASTENED W/ SCREWS

6" GUTTER

1x3 W/ GUTTER BACKER
TRIM

2x8 BARGE BOARD

5x8 FLASH BELOW ROOF
& ATOP GUTTER BACKER
TRIM

12

12

STEEL RIDGE W/ VENTED
GASKETS (HOLD RIDGE
PURLINS DOWN 1")

2x4 CEILING NAILERS @ 24" O.C.

SOFFIT CEILING (NON-VENTED)

F & J CHANNEL

MAX-RIB STEEL RIBBON ON
NEW 2x4 GIRTS W/ FL-1

FLASH & DRIP CAP @ BASE
MAX-RIB STEEL RIBBON

FL-1 FLASH & DRIP CAP

SOLID SOFFIT ON BASE
OF RIBBON

B/ RIBBON FRAMING
107'-2"

FBi TO STACK HEADERS IN
GIRT LINE OF NEW BUILDING
TO FACILITATE CONNECTION
OF NEW RIBBON

SPF 2x6 PURLIN BRACE
FASTENED TO THE SIDE
OF EACH FLAT PURLIN
W/ (1) 10d @ 24" O.C.

(2) 6x6 POSTS TO SUPPORT
INTERMEDIATE TRUSS &
RIBBON, FASTEN TRUSS TO
EACH POST W/ (15) 10d's

WRAP POSTS W/ STEEL
FLASH (SEE DETAIL)

6"
4 11'7"12 6"
4

3'4"11
3'4"11

6'4"2
2'11"7

9'3"9
2'11"7

12'8"4
3'4"11

6'4"2
6'4"2

12'8"4
6'4"2

2"

6'
6"

2

A

B

C

D

E

F G

12

12

5X7(D1)

3X7

4X10(R)

4X7

3X7

5X7(D1)

TREATED 6x6 POST W/ STEEL WRAP
SCALE: 2" = 1'-0"

SOLID TREATED POST

ALUMINUM DRIP CAP
AROUND BOTTOM (VERIFY
HEIGHT W/ PURCHASER)

2-PIECE STEEL
COLUMN WRAP

SE
A

L

601

S
H

EE
T 

TI
TL

E:

BR
EE

ZE
W

AY
 S

EC
TI

ON

COPYRIGHT  FBi Buildings, Inc.

TRUSS DRAWING - T2
SCALE : N.T.S.

**WARNING** READ AND FOLLOW ALL NOTES ON THIS DRAWING!
**IMPORTANT**FURNISH THIS DRAWING TO ALL CONTRACTORS INCLUDING THE INSTALLERS

Trusses require extreme care in fabricating, handling, shipping, installing and bracing.  Refer to and follow the latest edition of BCSI (Building
Component Safety Information, by TPI and SBCA) for safety practices prior to performing these functions.  Installers shall provide temporary
bracing per BCSI. Unless noted otherwise,top chord shall have properly attached structural sheathing and bottom chord shall have a properly
attached rigid ceiling.  Locations shown for permanent lateral restraint of webs shall have bracing installed per BCSI sections B3, B7, or B10,
as applicable.   Apply plates to each face of truss and position  as shown above and on the Joint Details,  unless noted otherwise.    Refer to
drawings 160A-Z for standard plate positions.
ITW Building Components Group Inc. shall not be responsible for any deviation from this drawing,any failure to build the truss in conformance
with ANSI/TPI  1, or for handling, shipping, installation and bracing of trusses. A seal on this drawing or cover page listing this drawing,
indicates  acceptance  of  professional  engineering  responsibility solely for the design shown.    The  suitability  and  use  of  this
drawing for any structure is the responsibility of the Building Designer per ANSI/TPI 1 Sec.2.
For more information see this job's general notes page and these web sites:  ITWBCG:  www.itwbcg.com; TPI:  www.tpinst.org; SBCA:  www.sbcindustry.com; ICC:  www.iccsafe.org

<b>Lumber</b>

<gap/>Top chord: 2x6 SP #1;
Bot chord: 2x6 SP #1;
Webs: 2x4 SP #1;

<b>Purlins</b>

<gap/>In lieu of structural panels or rigid ceiling use purlins
to laterally brace chords as follows:
   Chord      Spacing(in oc)      Start(ft)      End(ft)
       TC                24                 0.52            6.34
       TC                24                 6.34          12.17
       BC              N/A                 0.00          12.69
Apply purlins to any chords above or below fillers
at 24" OC unless shown otherwise above.

<b>Wind</b>

<gap/>Wind loads based on MWFRS with additional C&C
member design.

<gap/>Left and right cantilevers are exposed to wind

Maximum Reactions (lbs)
Gravity Non-Gravity

Loc   R+ / R- / Rh / Rw / U / RL

A 3125 /- /- /801 /583 /583
G 3125 /- /- /801 /583 /-
Wind reactions based on MWFRS
A Brg Width = 5.5 Min Req = 3.3
G Brg Width = 5.5 Min Req = 3.3
Bearings A & G are a rigid surface.

Maximum Top Chord Forces Per Ply (lbs)
Chords Tens. Comp.

A - B 946 - 3391
B - C 974 - 2550

Chords Tens. Comp.

C - D 974 - 2550
D - E 946 - 3391

Maximum Bot Chord Forces Per Ply (lbs)
Chords Tens. Comp.

A - F 2141 - 532

Chords Tens. Comp.

F - E 2141 - 415

Maximum Web Forces Per Ply (lbs)
Webs Tens. Comp.

B - F 704 - 911
C - F 1402 - 836

Webs Tens. Comp.

F - D 704 - 911

Loading Criteria (psf)

TCLL: 52.00
TCDL:  4.00
BCLL:  0.00
BCDL:  4.00

Des Ld: 60.00
NCBCLL:0.00
Soffit:  2.00
Load Duration: 1.15
Spacing: 96.0 "

Wind Criteria
Wind Std: ASCE 7-10
Speed: 115 mph
Enclosure: Part. Enc.
Risk Category: II
EXP: C
Mean Height: 15.00 ft
TCDL: 2.4 psf
BCDL: 2.4 psf
MWFRS Parallel Dist: 0 to h/2
C&C Dist a: 3.00 ft

GCpi: 0.55
Wind Duration: 1.33

Snow Criteria (Pg,Pf in PSF)

Pg: 35.0 Ct: 1.2 CAT: II
Pf: 26.5 Ce: 0.9
Lu: 35.0 Cs: 1.00
Snow Duration: 1.15

Code / Misc Criteria
Bldg Code: IBC 2015
TPI Std: 2007
Rep Factors Used: No
FT/RT: 10(0)/5(0)/4(0)
Plate Type(s):
WAVE

Defl/CSI Criteria
PP Deflection in   loc L/defl  L/#
VERT(LL): 0.042 F    999   240
VERT(TL): 0.054 F    999   240
HORZ(LL): 0.022 B      -         -
HORZ(TL): 0.028 B      -         -
Creep Factor: 1.5
Max TC CSI:  0.332
Max BC CSI:  0.984
Max Web CSI:  0.417
Mfg Specified Camber:

VIEW Ver: 21.01.01A.0521.21

20-1667-00
CTO
T2

Ply: 1
Qty: 2
Wgt: 91.0 lbs

SEQN: 11343 / T2 / COMN
FROM: JSS DRW:

... / ... 09/28/2023

10/16/2023

40



C
T

O
15

60
 S

 8
th

 S
t.

Ka
la

m
az

oo
, M

I  
49

00
9

ENG. BY :

PSC :

DRAWN BY :

MTO BY :

FBi PROJECT # :

SHEET :

LCS_LLC

XX

Josh S.

Anthony P.

20-1667-00

B
Y

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
O

.
D

A
TE

1
20

23
-0

9-
26

LC
S_

LL
C

D
ra

ft 
fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

re
vi

ew
2

20
23

-0
9-

28
LC

S_
LL

C
Pe

rm
it 

Se
t

3
20

23
-0

9-
29

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
re

vi
si

on
s)

4
20

23
-1

0-
11

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. C

O
A

P1
00

62
3,

 in
te

rio
r c

ha
ng

es
)

5
20

23
-1

0-
13

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
 re

vi
si

on
s &

 a
dd

l i
nt

er
io

r c
ha

ng
es

)
.....

2x4 GIRTS

WALK DOOR FRAME OUT DETAIL

2x8 TR
EATED

(2) 2
x6 FR

AMING

2x G
IRTS

2x G
IRTS

2x G
IRTS

LAMINATED

2x G
IRTS

TREATED
 TH

RESHOLD

DOOR HEADER
FLA

T N
AILE

R

LAMINATED

2x4 PO
LE 

FILL
 (TY

P.)

TREATED 2x4 FASTENED TO BACKSIDE OF
TREATED 2x8 CENTER MATCH FOR THRESHOLD

NOTE:
IF DOOR IS LOCATED IN AN INSULATED WALL,
ALL GAPS BETWEEN R.O.'s & DOOR FRAMES WILL
BE SEALED W/ LOW EXPANDING SPRAY FOAM

SCALE: 

3

8

" = 1'-0"

3
"

CENTER
 MATCH

COLUMN

COLUMN
2x4 GIRT B

OTTO
M OF W

INDOW

WINDOW FRAME OUT DETAIL

2x8 TR
EATED

 CENTER
 MATCH

2x G
IRT

LAMINATED

2x4 FIL
L (T

YP.
)

2x4 GIRT TOP OF WINDOW

(SAME A
S PO

ST S
IZE

)

BOX F
OR WINDOW

LAMINATED

NOTE:
LUMBER FOR WINDOW BOX IS
THE SAME AS COLUMN SIZE

NOTE:
IF WINDOW IS LOCATED IN AN INSULATED WALL,
ALL GAPS BETWEEN R.O.'s & WINDOW FRAMES
WILL BE SEALED W/ LOW EXPANDING SPRAY FOAM

SCALE: 

3

8

" = 1'-0"

COLUMN

COLUMN

ALTERNATING SCREW PATTERN (WALL)
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

ALTERNATING ROWS:
SCREW BESIDE OVERLAP
SCREW INTO EACH OVERLAP

SOLID ROW

SOLID ROW @ EAVE OR
RAKE LOCATION

SOLID ROW

SOLID ROW

ALTERNATING ROW

ALTERNATING ROW

DRIP CAP

GRADE BOARD

SOLID ROWS:
SCREW BESIDE EACH RIB
SCREW INTO EACH OVERLAP

TYPICAL OHD BLOCKING DETAIL

C

A

B

D

SCALE: NTS

(TYPICAL 24" HEADROOM TRACK ONLY)

CREW NOTE:
STANDARD OHD BLOCKING TO BE
INSTALLED UNLESS INFORMED
OTHERWISE BY THE PURCHASER

ALL SIDEWALL OHD BLOCKING SHALL BE 2x6
USE 2x6 JOIST HANGERS @ EA. CONNECTION

A = Door height
B = 1/2 door height (Door taller than 12')
C = Door height + 3'-6" (operator)
D = 1/2 of "C" dimension (operator center support)
Double up 2x6 framing if door is 24' or wider. (All
OHD blocking to be SYP)

AT ADDITIONAL COST EXTRA FULL
WIDTH BLOCKING AVAILABLE UPON
REQUEST FOR SIDE OR END DOORS

2x6 FOR DOORS ≤ 16' WIDE
2x8 FOR DOORS > 16' WIDE

(4) CONCRETE SCREWS

(4) CONCRETE SCREWS
(PER SIDE)

BOARD CONNECTION
SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

PRIMARY GRADE

PRIMARY GRADE
BOARD

(5) 10d NAILS PER GIRT
@ CORNER BAYS (U.N.O.)

GIRT CONNECTIONS
SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

(4) 10d NAILS PER GIRT
@ NON-CORNER BAY
LOCATIONS (U.N.O.)

(3) 10d NAILS PER GIRT
@ EVERY SPLICE (U.N.O.)

(1) PURLIN SCREW

PURLIN CONNECTION
SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

STRAIGHT-THRU
RIDGE PURLINS

24" SCAB W/ (2)
16d R.S. PER END

(1) PURLIN SCREW

(1) 16d NAIL TOE-NAILED
INTO TOP OF TRUSS

(1) 16d NAIL PER END OF
PURLIN LAP (U.N.O)

WOOD HEADER FASTENER PATTERN
SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

10d NAILS @ STUB (REFER
TO HEADER DETAIL FOR
REQUIRED QUANTITY)

10d NAILS @ STUB (REFER
TO HEADER DETAIL FOR
REQUIRED QUANTITY)

(3) 10d NAILS @ GIRT TO
COLUMN CONNECTION (U.N.O)

HEADER ONLY HELD BACK
FOR ADJACENT GIRT

1. RUN WALL VISQUEEN W/ 6" MINIMUM
TAIL AT TOP OF WALL. VISQUEEN FASTENED
TO COLUMN FACE W/ STAPLES, ALL LAPS
SHALL BE ON A COLUMN FACE & BLOCKED.

2. RUN INTERIOR GIRTS INCLUDING TOP
GIRT

3. START CEILING VISQUEEN W/ 4" MINIMUM
TAIL AT SIDEWALL.

VAPOR BARRIER SEQUENCE DETAIL
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

4. INSTALL AJ TRIM TO PINCH (2) LAYERS
OF VISQUEEN

5. RUN CEILING VISQUEEN.  FASTEN TO THE
BOTTOM CHORD W/ PLASTIC CAPS, ALL
LAPS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 4'.

ALTERNATING SCREW PATTERN (ROOF)
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

RIDGE ROW SHOULD HAVE
TWO NAILS PER SHEET

SOLID ROWS:
SCREW BESIDE EACH RIB
SCREW INTO EACH OVERLAP

RIDGE LOCATION

SOLID ROW

ALTERNATING ROW

BARGEALTERNATING ROWS:
SCREW BESIDE OVERLAP
SCREW INTO EACH OVERLAP

SOLID ROW

ALTERNATING ROW

SOLID ROW

TRUSS

RIDGE DETAIL
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

ROOF PITCH DISTANCE TO FIRST PURLIN

2/12
2.5/12
3/12
3.25/12
3.5/12
4/12
4.5/12
5/12
5.5/12
6/12
6.5/12
7/12
7.5/12

3"
2 3/4"
2 1/2"
2 1/2"
2 1/4"
2 1/4"
2"
1 3/4"
1 3/4" 
1 1/2"
1 1/2"
1 1/4"
1"

REFERENCE CHART 

REQUIRED
PURLIN BLOCKS

SEE CHART

P-RC 13 RIDGE CAP

UNI-VENT II VENTED
GASKET

2x4 PURLIN

RIDGE SCREW W/
BEAD OF CAULK
MAX-RIB STEEL
ROOFING

RAKE FINISH DETAIL
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

>12" SIDE OVERHANG W/  END OVERHANG

RAKE TRIM

CORNER TRIM

GUTTER
(OPTIONAL)

RAKE TRIM TO
STOP AT EDGE
OF ROOF STEEL

STEEL SIDING

FASCIA

F & J C
HANNEL

CUT BACK LEG OF
F&J CHANNEL OFF IN
OVERHANG AREA

THIS IS A GENERIC DETAIL TO SHOW OVERHANG FASTENERS.
ACTUAL OVERHANG CONSTRUCTION MAY VARY FROM THIS DETAIL.

SIMPSON DTT1Z ANCHOR:
(1) STRUCTURAL-M SCREW INTO
BASE OF ANCHOR & (6) SD#9-1 12"
SCREWS INTO FACE OF ANCHOR

(4) 16d R.S. NAILS

24" OVERHANG CONNECTION
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

(2) PURLIN SCREWS IN
OVERHANG TAIL

BCT CONNECTION
SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

(1) PURLIN SCREW

(1) 16d NAIL TOE-NAILED
INTO TOP OF TRUSS

(1) PURLIN SCREW

TRUSS

TRUSS

BCT

(1) 16d NAIL PER SIDE
(U.N.O)

5. INSULATE ENDWALL W/
UNFACED BATT INSULATION

6. INSTALL VISQUEEN

7. FASTEN 2x2 NAILER TO FORM
"CLAMP" FOR LOOSE ENDS OF VISQUEEN
COMING FROM EACH DIRECTION

8. INSTALL INTERIOR GIRTS

COMMERCIAL THERMAL INSTALLATION SEQUENCE @ CORNER
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

1. INSULATE SIDEWALL W/
UNFACED BATT INSULATION

2. INSTALL VISQUEEN AND
TACK TO CORNER COLUMN

3. INSTALL INTERIOR GIRTS
(ATTACHED TO THE 1st PLY OF
THE CORNER COLUMN)

4. INSTALL 2x BLOCKING
BETWEEN GIRTS

ENSURE BATT INSULATION HAS
FULL LENGTH CONTACT W/ COLUMN

COLUMNS IN-GROUND

TYPICAL 7'-9' POST SPACING

CONCRETE SCREWS -
INSTALL (1) IN MIDDLE
AND (1) NEAR EACH
END OF SILL PLATE

SILL PLATE INSTALLATION
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

SE
A

L

650

S
H

EE
T 

TI
TL

E:

M
IS

C 
DE

TA
IL

COPYRIGHT  FBi Buildings, Inc.

10/16/2023

41



ENG. BY :

PSC :

DRAWN BY :

MTO BY :

FBi PROJECT # :

SHEET :

LCS_LLC

XX

Josh S.

Anthony P.

20-1667-00

C
T

O
15

60
 S

 8
th

 S
t.

Ka
la

m
az

oo
, M

I  
49

00
9

B
Y

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
O

.
D

A
TE

1
20

23
-0

9-
26

LC
S_

LL
C

D
ra

ft 
fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

re
vi

ew
2

20
23

-0
9-

28
LC

S_
LL

C
Pe

rm
it 

Se
t

3
20

23
-0

9-
29

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
re

vi
si

on
s)

4
20

23
-1

0-
11

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. C

O
A

P1
00

62
3,

 in
te

rio
r c

ha
ng

es
)

5
20

23
-1

0-
13

LC
S_

LL
C

Pe
rm

it 
Se

t (
in

cl
. e

ng
 re

vi
si

on
s &

 a
dd

l i
nt

er
io

r c
ha

ng
es

)
.....

PERMA-COLUMN NOTES:
1. STUB MUST BE SET TO +/- 6" VERTICAL TOLERANCE.
2. MTO TO SEND OUTSIDE PLIES OF COLUMN-TOP 6"

LONGER THAN STANDARD PC LENGTH TO BE FIELD
TRIMMED AS NECESSARY.

3. MTO TO SEND CENTER PLY OF COLUMN-MIDDLE 6"
LONGER THAN STANDARD PC LENGTH TO BE FIELD
TRIMMED AS NECESSARY.

4. BOTTOM OF COLUMN-MIDDLE WILL NOT BE CUT.
5. CUT-OFF AMOUNT = X" - 6"
6. GIRT MARKS MEASURED FROM TOP OF CENTER PLY

OF COLUMN MIDDLE AFTER CUTTING.

END TOP/WIND BRACE CONNECTION
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

FASTEN EACH 2x6 x 12"
SYP BLOCK W/ (3)
STRUCTURAL-S SCREWS

CUT BCT & FASTEN TO
BLOCK W/ (1) PURLIN
SCREW

TRUSS

BCT

END TR
USS

FASTEN BCT TO BOTTOM
CHORD W/ (1) PURLIN SCREW

END TRUSS FASTENED TO "END TOP"
W/ (2) STRUCTURAL-M SCREWS @
EACH CHORD LOCATION & (2) 16d
R.S. NAILS @ EACH WEB LOCATION

TO
P C

HORD

FASTEN WIND BRACE PIECES
INTO AN "L" WITH (25) 10d NAILS

BCT FASTENED TO COLUMN
TOP W/ (5) 10d NAILS

BCT

WIND BRACE BRACKET FASTENED TO
TRUSS W/ (9) SD#9 x 1 12" SCREWS
AND FASTENED TO WIND BRACE W/
(11) SD#9 x 1 12" SCREWS

H1 CLIPS ON NEAREST PURLIN EACH
SIDE OF WIND BRACE (10-SD #9 x 1 12"
SCREWS TOTAL) - USE H10A-2 CLIPS
FOR 2-PLY TRUSSES (18-SD #9 x 1 12"
SCREWS TOTAL)

3
0
"

"BCT CONNECTOR"
PIECE NOT SHOWN
FOR CLARITY

TO
P C

HORD

FR
O

M
 B

O
TT

O
M

 O
F

TR
U
S
S
 T

O
 T

O
P 

O
F

W
IN

D
 B

R
A
C
E

WIND BRACE FASTENED
TO COLUMN TOP W/ (5)
STRUCTURAL-L SCREWS

HINGE CONNECTION DETAILS
SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

BOTTOM OF THE UPPER PART
OF THE HINGE IS FLUSH W/
THE BOTTOM OF THE CENTER
PLY OF THE "COLUMN TOP"

TOP OF THE LOWER PART OF
THE HINGE IS FLUSH W/ THE
TOP OF THE CENTER PLY OF
THE "COLUMN MIDDLE"

CUT OFF COLUMN THE SAME
AMOUNT AS "COLUMN TOP"
BEFORE HINGE FASTENING

HINGE FASTENED TO THE
"COLUMN TOP" W/ (2)
STRUCTURAL-M SCREWS & TO
THE "COLUMN MIDDLE" W/ (2)
STRUCTURAL-M SCREWS

SPLICE CONNECTION DETAILS
SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

7
"

"COLUMN MIDDLE"
FASTENED TO PERMA
BRACKET PER SPECS FROM
WALL SECTION

"COLUMN TOP" FASTENED TO THE
COLUMN W/ (3) STRUCTURAL
SCREWS PER SIDE

· STRUCTURAL-M SCREWS
FOR 3-PLY COLUMNS

· STRUCTURAL-L SCREWS FOR
4-PLY & 5-PLY COLUMNS

99'-9"
B/ GRADE BOARD

CONCRETE STUB

3
'-6

"

"COLUMN TOP" TEMPORARILY
FASTENED TO PERMA BRACKET W/
(1) STRUCTURAL SCREW EACH SIDE

STUB-TO-TOP CONNECTION DETAIL
SCALE: 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

CUT BOTTOM OF "COLUMN TOP"
(CUT SAME AMOUNT OFF
COLUMN CENTER PLY)

100'-0"
T/ F.F.

X

CATWALK INTERSECTION
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

2x4 BLOCK EACH SIDE
OF CATWALK FASTENED
W/ (5) 10d NAILS

2x6 SYP FASTENED TO
BLOCK W/ (5) 10d NAILS

AT CATWALK

2x6 BCT CONNECTOR AT 
GIRTS SHALL BE MARKED
AFTER "COLUMN MIDDLE"
IS CUT - MARKS ARE TO
BOTTOM OF GIRTS

0" 0" 

1'-5 3/4"

3'-5 3/4"

5'-5 3/4"

7'-5 3/4"

9'-5 3/4"

11'-5 3/4"

13'-5 3/4"

15'-5 3/4"

4
"

4
"

(8) 10d NAILS EACH
SIDE IN THIS REGION

(1) STRUCTURAL-M SCREW
EACH SIDE IN THIS REGION

(8) 10d NAILS EACH
SIDE IN THIS REGION

CONNECTION
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

TRUSS-TO-HEEL

SE
A

L

651

S
H

EE
T 

TI
TL

E:

Q-
Ly

ft 
De

ta
ils

COPYRIGHT  FBi Buildings, Inc.

10/16/2023

42



COMPLETE TEAM OUTFITTERS 
OSHTEMO TOWNSHIP, KALAMAZOO COUNTY 

STORMWATER CALCULATIONS  

Addition of proposed building and parking to existing site.  Stormwater management to be 
provided by on-site retention in existing low area of site.  

Affected Area of Parcel: 300’x550’ = 165,000 SFT/43,560 = 3.8 Acres 
Proposed Total Impervious Area:  

Buildings:   0.33 Acre  
Asphalt and Concrete:  0.85 Acre 

 

Total Impervious:  1.18 Acres   

Impervious Percentage:   
1.18/3.8 = 31% Impervious  

Non-Impervious Percentage:   
100%-31% = 69% Non-Impervious   

Average “C Factor” runoff value   
Impervious area:  C = 0.90 0.90 x 31%  
Non-Impervious area: C = 0.30 0.30 x 69% 

 

Average:               49%    
Use C = 0.49 for site calculations  

Infiltration Rate:  
Low area of site is Spinks Loamy Sand. 
Permeability rate for Spinks Loamy Sand is 2-20 inches per hour from USDA/SCS Soil 
Survey.  Use 2 inches per hour as conservative minimum. 
Assume water within 930 elevation contour for infiltration rate determination.  

9,836 SFT x 2 in/hour x 1 ft/12 inch x 1 hour/60 min. x 1 min./60 sec. = 0.46 CFS  
Use 0.46 CFS as total site infiltration rate.  
0.46/3.8 = 0.1211 CFS/Acre, Use 0.1211 CFS/Acre in spreadsheet  

Storage Volume Required:   
From Modified Kalamazoo County Rational Method Detention Basin Sizing Tool.   
Release rate set to 0.1211 CFS/Ac based on infiltration rate.  
Result is 27,355 CFT as required volume of retention storage with 1.25 factor of safety.  
27,355/1.25 = 21,884 CFT required per Oshtemo Township with 1.0 factor of safety.  

Retention Volume in low area on site. 
Cross sectional areas:    Volume between contours: 
Elevation 931:  17,349 SFT       

(17,349+9,836)/2 = 13,592 CFT 
Elevation 930:    9,836 SFT       

(9,836+703)/2 =        5,269 CFT  
Elevation 929:       703 SFT         

Total below 931 =   18,831 CFT 
21,884 CFT – 18,831 below 931 = 3,053 CFT above 931 
3,053 CFT / 17,349 SFT at 931 = 0.176 feet max additional depth  

High water elevation at required volume = 931.2 feet, more or less.  Excess capacity is available 
in retention area.            

Merritt Midwest, Inc.           
Project No. 23-114           
12-28-23 43



Location: Contributing Area [ac] = 3.8

Project: Runoff "C" Value = 0.49

Job No.: Allowable Release Rate [cfs/ac] = 0.1211

Date: Rainfall Frequency = 100-year

By: Site Release Rate [cfs] = 0.46018

Factor of Safety = 1.25

Required Storage Volume [cft] = 27355

Time to Empty [hr] = 16.5

Time [hr]
Rainfall 
Intensity 

[in/hr]

Runoff 
Volume [cft]

Discharge 
Volume [cft]

Storage 
Volume [cft]

Storage 
Volume [ac-ft]

Time to 
Empty [hr]

0.167 7.740 8719 276 10554 0.24 6.4

0.250 6.640 11220 414 13507 0.31 8.2

0.333 5.752 12959 552 15509 0.36 9.4

0.500 4.560 15411 828 18228 0.42 11.0

0.667 3.800 17122 1104 20022 0.46 12.1

0.750 3.516 17822 1242 20725 0.48 12.5

0.833 3.275 18449 1381 21336 0.49 12.9

1.000 2.890 19534 1657 22346 0.51 13.5

2.000 1.785 24130 3313 26021 0.60 15.7

3.000 1.313 26631 4970 27076 0.62 16.3

4.000 1.055 28510 6627 27355 0.63 16.5

5.000 0.887 29968 8283 27106 0.62 16.4

6.000 0.768 31159 9940 26524 0.61 16.0

7.000 0.682 32272 11597 25844 0.59 15.6

8.000 0.615 33235 13253 24977 0.57 15.1

9.000 0.560 34085 14910 23969 0.55 14.5

10.000 0.516 34845 16566 22849 0.52 13.8

12.000 0.446 36161 19880 20351 0.47 12.3

18.000 0.321 39067 29820 11560 0.27 7.0

24.000 0.256 41568 39760 2261 0.05 1.4

Robert C. Andrew, PE 

Rational Method
Detention Basin Sizing Tool

Version 1.0

Kalamazoo County

Complete Team Outfitters

23-114

12/28/2023

Disclaimer: 

Disclaimer: This Excel spreadsheet is 
furnished by the Kalamazoo County Drain 
Commissioner and FTC&H for the 
convenience of the recipient to show 
compliance with the Kalamazoo County 
Site Development Rules. 

Any additional conclusions or information 
obtained or derived from this 
spreadsheet program will be at the user's 
sole risk. 

Notes:

1. Runoff volume is calculated by multiplying the Rational 
formula discharge, CIA, by the time, t. VR= (CIA) t

2.   Discharge volume is calculated by multiplying the site 
release rate, Qo, by the time, t. Vo = Qo t

3.   Storage volume is calculated by subtracting the discharge 
volume from the runoff volume and multiplying by the factor 
of safety. Vs = (VR  - Vo) fs

4  The time to empty is the storage volume divided by the site 
release rate.

Kalamazoo County Drain Commissioner
201 West Kalamazoo Avenue, Rm. 202
Kalamazoo, Michigan 49007 23-114 RationalMethodDetention_KalamazooCDC.xlsx

1515 Arboretum Dr SE
Grand Rapids MI 49546

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



 

[This page left intentionally blank] 

62



OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING HELD NOVEMBER 14, 2023 AT 
OSHTEMO TOWNSHIP HALL, 7275 WEST MAIN STREET 

 
 
 
Agenda 
 
2024 ZONING BOARD MEETING DATES 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – VARIANCE: FRIENDSHIP ANIMAL HOSPITAL 
Hansen Building and Design Corporation, on behalf of Dr. Laura Billings, was requesting 
a variance in order to construct a new commercial building 25 feet from both of the side 
yards while Section 50.70.E. of the Township Ordinance requires 50-foot side yard 
setbacks. 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

A meeting of the Oshtemo Charter Township Zoning Board was held Tuesday, November 
14, 2023, beginning at approximately 3:02 p.m. 
 
ALL MEMBERS WERE PRESENT:  Anita Smith, Chair   
      Rick Everett 
      Dusty Farmer  
      Fred Gould 
      Harry Jachym  
      Louis Williams, Vice Chair   
      Alistair Smith 
    
Also present were Iris Lubbert, Planning Director, Jim Porter, Township Attorney, Leeanna 
Harris, Zoning Administrator, Martha Coash, Recording Secretary and several guests.  
 
Call to Order  
 
 Chairperson Smith called the meeting to order. Those present joined in reciting the 
Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
Approval of Agenda 
 
 Ms. Lubbert indicated there were no changes to the agenda. 
 
 Mr. Everett made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  Mr. Smith seconded 
the motion. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
 The Chair moved to the next agenda item. 
 
Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 
 
 There were no comments on non-agenda items. 
 

63



Approval of the Minutes of March 21, 2023 
 
 Chairperson Smith asked if there were changes to the minutes of March 21, 2023. 
Hearing none, she asked for a motion. 
 
           Mr. Smith made a motion to approve the Minutes of March 21, 2023 as presented.  Ms. 
Farmer seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
 The Chair moved to the next agenda item. 
 
2024 Zoning Board Meeting Dates 
 
 Ms. Lubbert provided the proposed meeting dates for the fourth Tuesday of each month 
with exceptions for holidays or for consistency with the Development Schedule of Applications: 
 

1/23 
2/20* 
3/26 
4/23 
5/21* 
6/25 
7/23 
8/20* 
9/24 

10/22 
11/19* 
12/17* 

1/21/2025 
 

*Dates shifted to avoid holidays or for consistency with  
the Development Schedule of Applications. 

 
 Chairperson Smith suggested moving the December Meeting to the 10th. Members 
decided to leave it as proposed, in the normal pattern.  

 
 Chairperson Smith asked for a motion.  
 
 Ms. Farmer made a motion to approve the Zoning Board Meeting Dates for 2024 as 
presented.  Mr. Williams seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
 The Chair moved to the next agenda item and asked Ms. Harris for her presentation. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – VARIANCE: FRIENDSHIP ANIMAL HOSPITAL 
Hansen Building and Design Corporation, on behalf of Dr. Laura Billings, was requesting 
a variance in order to construct a new commercial building at 2999 S. 11th St. 25 feet from 
both of the side yards while Section 50.70.E. of the Township Ordinance requires 50-foot 
side yard setbacks. 

64



   
 Ms. Harris said 2999 S. 11th Street, has approximately 119 feet of frontage, is 1.24 acres 
in size, and is zoned R-3: Residence District. The property is located in the southeast quadrant 
of the Township, southeast of the Crystal Lane and S. 11th Street intersection.   
 
 Hansen Building and Design Corporation, on behalf of Dr. Laura Billings, was requesting 
a variance from Section 50.70.E. of the Township Ordinance that governs the minimum distance 
between any building or structure (that is not a single-family home or duplex) and any rear or 
side property line abutting property with a single- or two-family residence located in an 
equivalent or lower zoning classification. Specifically, the Ordinance outlines that the setback 
distance shall be 50 feet, or a type F greenspace shall be installed, along the property line 
between the improved area of the subject property and the abutting residence.  
 
 2999 S. 11th Street is zoned R-3 and is currently vacant. The property in question is 
situated between two parcels that are also zoned R-3 but have single-family homes. Generally, 
the required side yard setback for a new commercial building within an R-3 zoning district is 20 
feet or the height of the abutting side of the building at its highest point. However, the presence 
of single-family homes triggers the increased setback requirements of 50.70.E of the Zoning 
Ordinance; a 50-feet setback or type F greenspace is required along the adjoining property 
lines. It should be noted that there is an R-2: Residence District abutting the southeastern 
portion of 2999 S. 11th Street.  
 
 Although Section 50.70. E references a type F greenspace, she noted the referenced 
type F greenspace was removed from the Landscaping Ordinance when it was last updated. 
Staff were able to research the earlier version of the Landscaping Ordinance and found the 
greenspace standards previously in place. Generally, the minimum setback distance required 
between any building and any rear or side property line is 20 feet or the height of the building, 
whichever is greater. This request would meet this Ordinance requirement since the proposed 
building height is 25 feet.  
 
 The applicant provided a letter outlining their reasoning for the variance request. In 
summary, the applicant contends that the required increased setbacks would leave little 
developable space on this 119-foot-wide parcel making development difficult and therefore this 
section of the ordinance unnecessarily burdensome. They also note the approval of this request 
will have no material impact on adjacent property owners. The applicant adds that even though 
the setback would be decreased, if approved, in order to meet the intent of the ordinance, they 
“will be landscaping the site very heavily, providing significant screening to all sides of the 
parcel. The 8- foot evergreens will be staggered in such a way to obstruct the view of the 
building from not only the R-2 parcel but the adjoining R-3 parcels as well.”   
 
STANDARDS OF REVIEW – STAFF ANALYSIS 
 Ms. Harris reviewed the principles the Michigan courts have applied for a dimensional 
variance, which collectively amount to demonstrating a practical difficulty: 

• Special or unique physical conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the 
property involved and which are not generally applicable to other properties in the same 
district. 

• Strict compliance with the standard would unreasonably prevent the landowner from 
using the property for a permitted use; or would render conformity to the ordinance 
unnecessarily burdensome. 

65



• The variance is the minimum necessary to provide substantial justice to the landowner 
and neighbors. 

• The problem is not self-created. 
• Public safety and welfare. 

 
 Ms. Harris indicated Staff analyzed the request against these principles and offered the 
following information to the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
Standards of Approval of a Nonuse Variance (practical difficulty) 
Standard: Unique Physical Circumstances 

Are there unique physical limitations or conditions which prevent compliance? 
 
Comment: 2999 S. 11th Street is currently undeveloped with relatively flat terrain. The 

ordinance outlines that a parcel within the R-3 district is required to have a 
minimum frontage of 200 feet and a minimum area of 50,000 square feet. This 
property’s frontage of 119 feet is legal non-conforming. The property’s area of 
1.24 acres exceeds the ordinance required minimum of 50,000 square feet.  The 
narrower width, almost half what is required, is a unique physical limitation. If the 
increased setback of 50 feet is strictly enforced for the development of this 
property, it would only allow a nonresidential structure 19 feet wide or less to be 
built on this site. It could be argued that the increased setback requirement 
renders the property essentially undevelopable for any use other than a single-
family home or duplex without a setback variance being granted. 

 
Conformance Unnecessarily Burdensome 

Are reasonable options for compliance available? 
Does reasonable use of the property exist with denial of the variance? 

 
Comment:  The matter of building a nonresidential use, specifically a veterinary clinic, on this 

property is discretionary and reasonable use of the property does still exist as a 
single- or two-family home; however, the enhanced setbacks from properties 
abutting those containing single- or two-family homes in equal or lesser zoning 
classifications severely limits the buildable area of this parcel for any other uses.  

 
  Section 50.70 E was originally designed to offer two options for enhanced 

buffering between uses. The first is a setback of 50 feet and the second is the 
installation of a type F greenspace (i.e. setback of 35 feet with increased 
landscaping). The second option is no longer available as the ordinance no 
longer includes the type F landscaping referenced, leaving the applicant with one 
less option to develop than previous developers. Even though this option is 
technically no longer applicable, the Zoning Board of Appeals should consider 
the original intent of 50.70. E which allowed for a decreased setback, in this case 
from 50 feet to 35 feet, as long as additional landscaping was provided.  

 
  Note: to address the spirit of the ordinance, the applicants have indicated they 

are willing to provide increased landscaping, to the north, south, and east sides 
of the parcel. Any proposed landscaping plan will need to be reviewed against 
the landscaping ordinance and approved by the Planning Commission with the 
review of the site plan. The Commission should consider this as a condition of 
approval. 

 

66



Minimum Necessary for Substantial Justice 
Applied to both applicant as well as to other property owners in district. 
Review past decisions of the ZBA for consistency (precedence). 
 

Comment: In researching past Zoning Board of Appeals decisions regarding the request for 
relief from increased setback requirements abutting single- or two-family homes, 
Planning Department staff were able to identify two similar cases.  

1. Spurr Dental, 1624 South Drake Road, 4/8/2002: The applicant sought 
relief from the supplemental setback requirements from CR: Local 
Business District classification to adjacent R-3 properties from the 
Zoning Board of Appeals to allow for the construction of a new office 
building on the property. Without the variance, the applicants argued, 
there would be essentially no buildable area resulting since the width 
of the property is 159 feet with supplemental setback requirements of 
85 feet on both the north and south property lines. The Zoning Board 
of Appeals granted the variance request, allowing the building to be 
built to the standard commercial office setback requirements and not 
have to follow the enhanced applicable setbacks, citing that the 
conformance was unnecessarily burdensome, the hardship was not 
self-created, and that the spirit and intent of the Ordinance would be 
observed by the variance. 

2. D & R Sports, 8178 West Main Street, 10/6/2014: The applicants 
sought relief from the supplemental setback requirements for 
properties abutting residential zoning districts from the Zoning Board 
of Appeals to allow for the construction of a new storage building. If 
approved, the new structure was proposed to be located 58 feet from 
the property line, 33 feet less than required by the supplemental 
setback provisions. The applicant indicated there was an existing 
berm fully planted with spruce trees that should completely obstruct 
the view of the building. The Zoning Board of Appeals granted the 
variance request given the adjacent use of the property is a unique 
element and it was unlikely to have a material impact on the adjacent 
property.  

 
Self-Created Hardship 

Are the conditions or circumstances which resulted in the variance request created 
by actions of the applicant? 

 
Comment: With the site currently being vacant, it could be argued that the need for the 

variance requested is self-created. However, the building setbacks for this 
property severely limit the amount of space available for development. The width 
of the property is 119 feet, and with the 50-foot setback on both the north and 
south, it would give only 19 feet to construct a building.  

   
Public Safety and Welfare 
  Will the variance request negatively impact the health, safety, and welfare of 

others? 
 
Comment: The applicant stated they would provide extensive landscape buffering to 

obscure the site from the properties to the north, south, and east, more similarly 
aligned with the type F greenspace referenced. If the variance is approved, the 

67



site plan would require the review of the Planning Commission and a public 
hearing to ensure the proposed use and layout are compatible with the 
surrounding area. With the willingness to provide additional screening and the 
safeguards in place through the Planning Commission review, staff does not 
anticipate that allowing the structure to be built closer to the neighboring 
properties with single-family homes than is typically allowed would negatively 
impact the health, safety, or welfare of the neighbors or the community. 
 

POSSIBLE ACTIONS 
 Ms. Harris suggested Board Members could take the following possible actions: 
 

• Motion to approve as requested (conditions may be attached) 
• Motion to deny 
• Motion to approve with an alternate variance relief (conditions may be attached) 

 
 The motion should include the findings of fact relevant to the requested variance. Based 
on staff analysis, the following findings of fact were presented: 
 

• Support of variance approval 
o There are unique physical limitations (property width).  
o Conformance to the ordinance is unnecessarily burdensome as the enhanced 

setbacks for properties abutting those containing single- or two-family homes in 
equal or lesser zoning classifications severely limits the buildable area of this 
parcel.  

o With increased landscaping/screening, per the original intent of 50.70 E, there 
would be no negative impact to the health, safety, or welfare of the public by 
allowing the building to be built with the proposed setbacks. 

o Substantial justice is met as the Zoning Board of Appeals granted setback 
variances for two similar cases in the past. 

• Support of variance denial 
o The necessity of the variance from the enhanced 50 foot setback is a self-

created hardship. 

Possible motions for the Zoning Board of Appeals to consider include: 

1. Variance Approval 
The Zoning Board of Appeals approves the variance request due to the unique physical 
limitations that exist, conformance to the ordinance is unnecessarily burdensome and 
there would be no negative impact to the safety of the public with the condition that 
enhanced landscaping, reviewed, and approved by the Planning Commission, is 
installed within the decreased setback areas to meet the intent of Section 50.70.E. and 
any proposed primary building meets the general zoning setback requirements (in this 
case, 20 feet or the height of the building, whichever is greater). 
 

2. Variance Denial 
The Zoning Board of Appeals denies the variance request due to the proposal being a 
self-created hardship. 
 

3. Variance Approval and Denial 

68



The Zoning Board of Appeals can choose to approve portions of the requested variance 
or provide alternate relief. For example, approve a variance for a setback larger than 
requested but less than the ordinance requires, ex. 35 feet. 

 Chairperson Smith thanked Ms. Harris for her presentation and asked if Board Members 
had questions for her. Hearing none, she asked if the applicant wished to speak. 
 
 Mr. Walter Hansen, of Building and Design Corporation spoke on behalf of Dr. Laura 
Billings, and noted the Kalamazoo County Road Commission has approved the proposed 
location of the drive, and for soil erosion permissions have both been received. He described 
the intent to develop an office on the property to the north, the extensive landscaping with 
evergreen trees that is proposed will provide very good screening, noted there would be 400 
feet between the back of the residence on the R-2 zoned property and this development, and 
that approval of the variance would not result in negatively impacting the home directly to the 
south .  
 
 Without the variance, he said it would be almost impossible for any type of office use on 
the site, specifically citing that no fire truck turnaround would be possible. 
 
 Chairperson Smith thanked Mr. Hansen for his comments and opened a public hearing. 
 
 Ms. Penny Marsh, 3065 S. 11th Street spoke in opposition to the variance request. Her 
comments are attached to these minutes in their entirety. 
 
 Hearing no further comments, the Chair closed the hearing and moved to Board 
Deliberations. 
 
 Mr. Smith noted that he would be in support of approving the variance as requested with 
the conditions outlined by staff. He noted the installation of the additional screening and the 
non-conforming, pre-existing width of the parcel which is a unique limitation.  
 

Ms. Farmer said the request for variance was the result of a self-created hardship and 
that the ordinance is in place in large part to protect residential properties. The proposed 
business would be right next to a residence and cited her concern regarding equal or lesser 
zoning classifications. She noted that as zoning goes with the land, in the future the building 
might be an entirely different business. 

 
 Chairperson Smith also felt the request was based on a self-created hardship.  
 
 Mr. Williams encouraged the applicant to take another look at the plan. 
 
 Mr. Everett asked whether the site could be used for a residence. 
 
 Attorney Porter said it could be used for a single family residence or a duplex. 
 
 Hearing no further discussion, Chairperson Smith asked for a motion. 
 
 Ms. Farmer made a motion to deny the variance request  to construct a new 
commercial building at 2999 S. 11th St. 25 feet from both of the side yards while Section 
50.70.E. of the Township Ordinance requires 50-foot side yard setbacks due to the variance 
request being the result of a self-created hardship. Mr. Williams seconded the motion. The 

69



motion was approved and the variance request denied in a roll call vote of  5 – 2. (Roll Call 
Vote: Mr. Gould – yes; Mr. Jachym – no; Ms. Farmer – yes; Ms. Smith – yes; Mr. Williams – 
yes; Mr. Smith – no; Mr. Everett – yes.) 
 
 Chairperson Smith moved to the next agenda item. 
 
Other Updates and Business 
 
 Ms. Lubbert said there will be two items to consider at the December 12 meeting and 
wished everyone happy holidays. 
 
 Ms. Farmer noted this was the first time Ms. Harris had presented to the group and 
thanked her for a job well done; Chairperson Smith agreed. 
 
  
Adjournment 
 
 Chairperson Smith noted the Zoning Board of Appeals had exhausted its agenda. There 
being no other business, she adjourned the meeting at approximately 3:44 p.m. 
 
Minutes prepared: 
November 15, 2023 
 
Minutes approved: 
December 12, 2023 
 

70



71



 

[This page left intentionally blank] 

72



 

1 
 

OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

DRAFT MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING HELD DECEMBER 12, 2023 AT 
OSHTEMO TOWNSHIP HALL, 7275 WEST MAIN STREET 

 

 
Agenda 
 
PUBLIC HEARING -  VARIANCE: HCD PROPERTIES LLC 
Sign Impressions, on behalf of HCD Properties LLC, was requesting two sign variances 
pertaining to new on-site signage for an industrial property located at 3680 Stadium Park 
Way. Both variances were requesting relief from Section 55.90 of the zoning ordinance 
which governs the use, area, type height, and number of signs allowed for industrial land 
uses. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

A meeting of the Oshtemo Charter Township Zoning Board of Appeals was held Tuesday, 
December 12, 2023, beginning at approximately 3:00 p.m. 
 
ALL MEMBERS WERE PRESENT:  Anita Smith, Chair   
      Rick Everett 
      Dusty Farmer  
      Fred Gould 
      Harry Jachym  
      Louis Williams, Vice Chair   
      Alistair Smith 
    
Also present were Iris Lubbert, Planning Director, Jim Porter, Township Attorney, Martha 
Coash, Recording Secretary and several guests.  
 
Call to Order  
 
 Chairperson Smith called the meeting to order. Those present joined in reciting the 
Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
Approval of Agenda 
 
 Ms. Lubbert indicated there were no changes to the agenda. 
 
 Ms. Farmer made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  Mr. Jachym seconded 
the motion. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
 The Chair moved to the next agenda item. 
 
Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 
 
 There were no comments on non-agenda items. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of November 14, 2023 
 
 Chairperson Smith asked if there were changes to the minutes of November 14, 2023.  

73



 

2 
 

It was noted the vote on page seven needed correction to reflect that Mr. Smith voted 
“no” on the motion rather than “yes” and that Mr. Williams voted “yes” rather than “no.”   
 

The Chair asked for a motion. 
 
           Ms. Farmer made a motion to approve the Minutes of November 14, 2023 as presented 
with the noted correction.  Mr. Smith seconded the motion. The motion was approved 
unanimously. 
 
 The Chair moved to the next agenda item, opened the meeting for public hearing, and 
asked Ms. Lubbert for her presentation. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING -  VARIANCE: HCD PROPERTIES LLC 
Sign Impressions, on behalf of HCD Properties LLC, was requesting two sign variances 
pertaining to new on-site signage for an industrial property located at 3680 Stadium Park 
Way. Both variances requested relief from Section 55.90 of the zoning ordinance which 
governs the use, area, type height, and number of signs allowed for industrial land uses. 
 

Ms. Lubbert presented an overview, explaining Sign Impressions, on behalf of HCD 
Properties LLC,was requesting two sign variances pertaining to new on-site signage for an 
industrial property located at 3680 Stadium Park Way (parcel no. 05-35-155-050), in the I-1 
Industrial District. Both variances requested relief from Section 55.90 of the zoning ordinance 
which governs the use, area, type, height, and number of signs allowed for industrial land uses. 
For Request A, the applicant asked for a variance to establish a wall sign that is 105.33 square 
feet in sign area where only 50 square feet is permitted. In Request B, the applicant requested 
a variance for the proposed wall sign to be mounted at 30’ in height, exceeding the maximum 
permited mounting height of 20’.  
 

She noted the subject 11-acre site is located in the southwest quadrant of the Township 
and has road frontage adjacent to Stadium Drive and Stadium Park Way. The site currently 
serves as a manufacturing facility for food flavorings. The purpose of the 30,000+ square foot 
building addition is to provide additional space for warehouse and cold storage needs. Individual 
industrial buildings located outside of an industrial-office park are allowed one wall sign and one 
ground sign. Currently, the subject site only has one ground sign erected. If signage is proposed 
to differentiate from what the zoning ordinance allows with respects to placement, height, size, 
and the number of signs, a variance request is required. Since the nature of these requests 
conflict with the code, the applicant requested the Zoning Board of Appeals consider the two 
variances for their proposal for relief from Section 55.90: Industrial Land Uses.  
 
SECTION 55.90: Industrial Land Uses 

Ms. Lubbert reported the applicant provided the following rationale for the two variance 
requests from Section 55.90. She noted further rationale supporting such could be found in the 
letter of intent submitted by the applicant.   

 

• “Criteria 1 Conformance Unnecessarily Burdensome 

1. The 50 sq ft requirement is significantly too small for the size of the building it will be 

attached to. Having a sign that you cannot see because it is too small for the size of the 

building does not benefit anyone in the community. 

2. Having a sign in the middle of the building instead of where it can be seen higher up on 

the building does not allow for proper visibility.” 

74



 

3 
 

• “Criteria 3 Unique Physical Circumstances 

Are there unique limitations or conditions which prevent compliance? YES 
The building is very large, 34’ tall x 165’ long. Proper visibility requires a larger sign.  
 
He provided two layouts. One is that of the proposed sign. The other is what is currently 
allowed by the Township without deviation. The additional sq footage we are requesting is 
necessary to ensure that the size of the sign is complimentary to the size of the structure it 
will be attached to. The layout that depicts the 50 sq ft sign is significantly too small for the 
size of the structure it will be attached to and visibility to the road will be substantially 
reduced if visible at all.” 
 
Ms. Lubbert reviewed and provided staff analysis of the Standards of Review: 

 
The Michigan courts have applied the following principles for a dimensional variance, which 
collectively amount to demonstrating a practical difficulty, as follows: 

• Special or unique physical conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the 

property involved and which are not generally applicable to other properties in the same 

district. 

• Strict compliance with the standard would unreasonably prevent the landowner from 

using the property for a permitted use; or would render conformity to the ordinance 

unnecessarily burdensome. 

• The variance is the minimum necessary to provide substantial justice to the landowner 

and neighbors. 

• The problem is not self-created. 

• Public safety and welfare. 

 
STANDARDS OF APPROVAL OF A NONUSE VARIANCE (PRACTICAL DIFFICULTY): 
 
Standard: Unique Physical Circumstances 

Are there unique physical limitations or conditions which prevent compliance? 
 
Comment: Request A) The subject property possesses approximately 740’ of road frontage 

adjacent to Stadium Drive and approximately 525’ adjacent to Stadium Park 
Way. The segment of Stadium Drive adjacent to the site is a five-lane roadway 
with a speed limit of 55 mph and is heavily traveled. Additionally, although the 
minimum front yard setback required by ordinance is 120’ from the center of the 
street right-of-way, the building addition is set back approximately 220’ from the 
center of the street right-of-way from Stadium Drive. It could be argued that a 50 
square foot wall sign in this location is at a visual disadvantage due to the speeds 
in this area and the enhanced setback from Stadium Drive. Having signage 
visible from this major arterial would help with wayfinding. There are no 
significant elevation changes as the grade of the property is relatively flat.  

 
  Request B) FlavorSum received formal approval from the Zoning Board of 

Appeals on August 23, 2022, to construct a 30,000+ square foot building at the 
subject property. The building addition is 34’ tall. The zoning ordinance only 

75



 

4 
 

allows for wall signs to be placed at a maximum mounting height of 20’ above 
grade. Due to the building’s height, the applicant requested a variance to mount 
the wall sign at 30’ above grade. It is typical for a wall sign to be mounted near 
the top of any building. In this case, the zoning ordinance would restrict any type 
of wall sign exceeding a mounting height of 20’. 

 
Standard: Conformance Unnecessarily Burdensome 

Are reasonable options for compliance available? 
Does reasonable use of the property exist with denial of the variance? 
   

Comment: Request A) As the building addition is 165’ long and 34’ tall, it can be expected 
that a larger sign area is desired to match the building’s scale. The building is 
also set back 220’ from the center of the Stadium Drive street right-of-way, or 
rather 165’ from the front yard property line, which also plays a factor into the 
need for a greater sign area due to the distance from Stadium Drive. However, 
the applicant can still propose adequate signage that meets the sign area 
requirements outlined in the zoning ordinance. The wall sign could also be 
relocated onto the original portion of the principal building which is not as tall or 
long as the new building addition, though equally as far from Stadium Drive. 

  Request B) Other than the Ascension Borgess industrial-office development, 
there are few other industrial buildings that have a height similar to the subject 
building. The building is 34’ tall. If the variance request for the wall sign is denied 
for a mounting height of approximately 30’, the wall sign would need to be placed 
just above the midway point of the building addition. As noted previously, it is 
common practice to place walls signs near the top of a building. However, the 
portion of the principal building which existed prior to the 2022 building addition 
does possess an elevation facing Stadium Drive as well. The top of said 
elevation as measured from grade is 18’ tall, which is 16’ shorter than the top of 
the building addition where the applicant would like the wall sign to be placed. It 
can be argued that if the variance for the wall sign was denied, the applicant 
could relocate the wall sign further east on the south elevation facing Stadium 
Drive and the visual issue in terms of placement for sign height can be avoided. 
Reasonable use of the property would also still exist.  

 
Standard: Minimum Necessary for Substantial Justice 

Applied to both applicant as well as to other property owners in district. 
Review past decisions of the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) for consistency 
(precedence). 

Comment: In researching past ZBA decisions regarding sign relief for industrial 
developments, Planning Department staff were able to identify one similar 
request to allow for an increased sign area and increased mounting height for 
wall signs. A summary of said findings are described below. Although there are 
several similar cases for commercial properties, only the below industrial 
comparison was found. 

Request A) Ascension Borgess, 2520 Robert Jones Way, September 28, 2021: 

Ascension Borgess requested a variance to increase the sign area of their wall 

mounted signs. The applicant indicated the request was to help to provide 

reasonable identification. Some of the unique physical circumstances included 

that the property has frontage on two major roads, there is a substantial amount 

76



 

5 
 

of preserved open space adjacent to the building, and the building is set back a 

significant distance from the roads. Therefore, wall signs larger than 50 square 

feet may be deemed appropriate for visibility. The ZBA granted the variance to 

increase the sign area for the wall sign on the south side of the building to 131.4 

square feet in area and the wall sign on the west side of the building to 205.5 

square feet in area, where the ordinance allows a sign area of 50 square feet. 

Request B) Ascension Borgess, 2520 Robert Jones Way, September 28, 2021: 

Ascension Borgess requested a variance to increase the height of their south 

and west facing wall mounted signs. The applicant mentioned the request was to 

help to provide adequate signage in an appropriate location given that the 

building height ranges anywhere from 30’-47’ tall. The increase mounting height 

of the signage would provide visibility from US-131 and Drake Road and would 

help guide patients and their families to the site. The ZBA granted the variance to 

increase the mounting height for the wall sign on the south side of the building to 

be mounted at a height of 33’ above grade and the wall sign on the west side of 

the building to be mounted at a height of 30’ above grade, where the zoning 

ordinance allows a maximum mounting height of 20 feet. 

Standard: Self-Created Hardship 
Are the conditions or circumstances which resulted in the variance request 
created by actions of the applicant? 

Comment: Requests A & B) Industrial buildings are often designed to be large, and in this 
case, large enough to store goods and other materials in the warehouse to be 
able to operate the business successfully. The zoning ordinance was not 
originally written with taller buildings in mind. The zoning ordinance does not 
have a maximum building height allowed for industrial developments. The 
applicant followed all requirements outlined in the zoning ordinance while 
developing the site. However, although all businesses on Stadium Drive share 
the enhanced setback of 120’, it was the property owner’s decision to set the 
building back an additional 100’ from what the ordinance requires. It is the 
applicant’s desire to establish a wall sign with an overall sign area that is double 
the maximum size allowed by code. It is also the applicant’s desire to install a 
wall sign that exceeds the maximum mounting height allowed by the zoning 
ordinance. Installing a wall sign out of compliance with all aspects of the zoning 
ordinance is not required nor necessary. The request is a self-created hardship. 

Standard: Public Safety and Welfare 

  Will the variance request negatively impact the health, safety, and welfare of 
others? 

Comment: Requests A & B) The increased sign area is not intrusive to motorists or any 
surrounding properties. The sign area requested could be argued to suit the 165’ 
wide elevation the wall sign is proposed to be mounted on. Additionally, it is fairly 
common for businesses to have their wall signs near the top of their respected 
building. The zoning ordinance allows for a maximum wall mounting height of 20’, 
whereas the proposed signs would be mounted at 30’ in height above grade. 
This request is to mount the subject wall sign 10’ higher than what is allowed by 
code. Placing signage higher on a taller building to match this practice will not 
negatively impact members of the public. This has been implemented elsewhere 

77



 

6 
 

at other businesses and has shown no negative effects. Neither variance request 
will negatively impact the health, safety, and welfare of others.  

 
 Ms. Lubbert provided possible actions the Zoning Board of Appeals might take and the 
findings of fact relevant to the requested variance based on staff analysis. 
 
POSSIBLE ACTIONS 

• Motion to approve as requested (conditions may be attached) 

• Motion to approve with an alternate variance relief (conditions may be attached) 

• Motion to deny. 

 
The motion should include the findings of fact relevant to the requested variance.  Based on the 
staff analysis, the following findings of fact are presented: 
 

• Support of variance approval for Request A 

o There are Unique Physical Circumstances. The property is located on a 55 

mph five-lane roadway. The higher speeds in this area in combination with 

the setback of the building warrants a larger sized wall sign to provide 

appropriate advertisement to commuters on such traveled way.  

o There is substantial justice. There is one previous case from two years ago in 

which an industrial-office development is granted a variance to allow for a 

significantly larger wall sign. 

o Public health, safety, and welfare will be secured. 

 

• Support of variance denial for Request A 

o The variance request is a hardship that is self-created, as the applicant is not 

required to install a larger sign nor was required to set the building back an 

additional 100’. 

o Reasonable use of the property would still exist if the variance were denied.  

o Reasonable options for compliance are available. 

 

• Support of variance approval for Request B 

o FlavorSum received formal approval from the Zoning Board of Appeals on 

August 23, 2022 which allowed the applicant to construct the building this 

size and height, presenting a unique physical circumstance. The zoning 

ordinance was not originally written with taller buildings in mind. 

o There is one previous case in which a taller, industrial building was granted a 

variance to allow for a greater mounting height for wall signs.  

o If the variance was granted, it would not negatively impact the health, safety, 

and welfare of the public.  

 

• Support of variance denial for Request B 

o Conformance is not unnecessarily burdensome as other options for 

compliance are available. The wall sign could be relocated and mounted at a 

height which would comply with ordinance requirements on the portion of the 

principal building that predated the 2022 building addition which possesses a 

south elevation facing Stadium Drive. 

78



 

7 
 

o Visibility of the wall sign will be maintained regardless of height. Reasonable 

use of the property exists if the variance is denied. 

o The request for the variance is a self-created hardship. 
 

She provided the following possible motions for the Zoning Board of Appeals to consider: 
 
1. Variance Approval for Request A 

The Zoning Board of Appeals approves the variance request due to there being unique 
physical circumstances with the property in question, minimum necessary for substantial 
justice, and approval will not negatively impact the health, safety, and welfare of the public. 

 
2. Variance Denial for Request A 

The Zoning Board of Appeals denies the variance request as the need for the variance is a 
self-created hardship and conformance with code requirements is not unnecessarily 
burdensome. 

 
3. Variance Approval for Request B 

The Zoning Board of Appeals approves the variance request due to there being unique 
physical circumstances with the property in question, minimum necessary for substantial 
justice, and approval will not negatively impact the health, safety, and welfare of the public. 

 
4. Variance Denial for Request B 

The Zoning Board of Appeals denies the variance request as the need for the variance is a 
self-created hardship and conformance with code requirements is not unnecessarily 
burdensome. 

 
 Chairperson Smith asked if there were questions from board members. 
 
 Ms. Farmer asked what the difference was between this situation and the Robert Jones 
Parkway medical building that serves hundreds of patients each day. She did not understand 
the physical disadvantage for wayfinding. It could be argued that the restriction of 50 feet could 
be a visual disadvantage. 
 
 Ms. Lubbert indicated the FlavorSum property has frontage on two different roads and is 
set back the double required distance from the road.  She noted they do have a monument sign. 
 
 Ms. Farmer commented the applicant chose the distance from the road, a self-created 
hardship and compared the amount of daily traffic of Robert Jones Way to that of FlavorSum in 
light of the substantial justice consideration. 
 
 Ms. Lubbert noted the uses are clinical vs. industrial, she suggested not focusing on that 
too much; it is more about the physical environment. Substantial justice should be considered 
regarding how past precedent was considered. She added that the medical building also 
received a variance for a second wall sign, where only one was permitted. This industrial 
request is only for the size and placement.  
 
 Attorney Porter added substantial justice should provide equal protection; the applicant 
should be treated the same as a former applicant. 
 

79



8 

Mr. Gould noted the board has revisited taller buildings requirements related to signage 
and he thought the ordinance was being rewritten to address that issue. 

Ms. Lubbert said updating the signage height requirements is on the to-do list. 

Attorney Porter said a number of commercial properties have the same issues. 

Hearing no further comments the Chair asked if the applicant wished to speak. 

Mr. Paul Havenaar, representing Sign Impressions, indicated 50 square feet for a sign 
that is 220 feet from the road is too small as well as being too small for the size of the building 
regardless of setback. He listed other local jurisdictions and their requirements, all larger than 
what Oshtemo allows. He also noted it is a safety issue. Truckers often miss the turn off to get 
to the back warehouses and have to turn around. The existing electrical box nearby makes the 
existing sign difficult to see. 

He compared the requested sign to other larger business signs around the 
neighborhood and noted some also have signs mounted higher up on the building and that they 
are not obtrusive. Sign height is allowed regardless of placement on the building. Signs halfway 
up on buildings do not look good. The trees on the FlavorSum site, planted to Township 
requirements, will restrict visibility of a sign as they grow if, placed where currently required.  

Ms. Farmer said any motion should include clear reasons as supplied by the Planning 
Director and asked Mr. Havenaar what method he used to compare industrial buildings’ 
requirements to those of commercial buildings. 

Mr. Havenaar said they tried to compare the ratio for larger buildings in the Township, 
most of which are commercial. 

A representative of FlavorSum explained this location will have more traffic as they will 
be adding more employees, including more truck drivers and more warehouse employees. 
There will be more truck traffic including semis to deliver raw materials and take shipments out. 

Ms. Lubbert clarified the pictures of commercial buildings provided for comparison are 
covered by the ordinance under different zoning and types of uses. Industrial classifications 
have more restrictions. She noted a large number of commercial buildings have asked for larger 
signs and most requests have been approved.  

Attorney Porter said information regarding granted requests for commercial buildings 
were relevant to the discussion and confirmed the Board can take those decisions into account. 

Hearing no further comments, the Chair closed the public hearing and moved to Board 
Deliberations. 

Mr. Smith said he supported both requests: size and location for the purpose stated; the 
request is similar to other accommodations approved and he did not see the difference between 
this request and the one from Borgess. 

Mr. Gould agreed, saying buildings will continue to get taller and adjustments in 
ordinance will need to be made to accommodate them.  

80



9 

Mr. Williams concurred with their comments. 

Attorney Porter confirmed there is no height restriction for buildings in the Township 
other than for residential districts. 

Hearing no further comments, Chairperson Smith noted there seemed to be board 
consensus and asked for two motions. 

Ms. Farmer made a motion to approve Request A, a variance to establish a wall sign 
that is 105.33 square feet in sign area where only 50 square feet is permitted, based on meeting 
the criteria of unique physical circumstances, substantial justice and public health, safety and 
welfare. Mr. Williams seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously. 

Ms. Farmer made a motion to approve Request B, a variance to allow the proposed 
wall sign to be mounted at 30 feet in height, exceeding the maximum permitted mounting height 
of 20 feet, based on meeting the criteria of unique physical circumstances, substantial justice 
and public health, safety and welfare. Mr. Gould seconded the motion. The motion was 
approved unanimously. 

Chairperson Smith moved to the next agenda item. 

Other Updates and Business 

Ms. Lubbert noted this would be her last meeting prior to her resignation from her 
position at the Township on December 21, and announced this would also be Chairperson 
Smith’s last meeting as she was resigning from the ZBA. Chairman Smith was presented with a 
certificate of appreciation. Members thanked them both for their service and told them they 
would be missed. 

Ms. Lubbert noted the ZBA would need to elect new officers at the first meeting in 2024. 

Mr. Williams asked whether the ZBA could request that audience members remove 
headgear during the Pledge of Allegiance out of respect. 

Attorney Porter said it is up to the Township Board to set meeting standards, but will look 
into what might be required or requested for the future. 

Mr. Jachym noted he is an alternate member of the ZBA and asked what that meant as 
to his duties/restrictions. 

Attorney Porter said they are the same as any other member. 

Mr. Williams indicated he would be interested in chairing the ZBA in 2024. 

Adjournment 

Chairperson Smith noted the Zoning Board of Appeals had exhausted its agenda. There 
being no other business, she adjourned the meeting at approximately  4:06 p.m. 

Minutes prepared: 
December 13, 2023 

81



 

10 
 

 
Minutes approved: 
___________, 2023 

82


	1. Staff Report
	2. Site Plan Application
	2.5 Applicant's LOI
	3. Site Plan Set
	23-114 COMPLETE TEAM OUTFITTERS SITE PLAN FINAL SHEET 4.pdf
	23-114 COMPLETE TEAM OUTFITTERS SITE PLAN FINAL SHEET 1 Sealed.pdf
	23-114 COMPLETE TEAM OUTFITTERS SITE PLAN FINAL SHEET 2.pdf
	23-114 COMPLETE TEAM OUTFITTERS SITE PLAN FINAL SHEET 3.pdf

	4. Elevations Package
	ENTRY.pdf
	FRONT SIDE (SOUTH PROPERTY LINE).pdf
	STREET SIDE DRIVEWAY.pdf
	OVERVIEW.pdf

	5. Deviation Request Letter
	5.5 Public Works notes on sidewalk dev
	57.90 SIDEWALKS AND NON-MOTORIZED FACILITIES
	Section 294.000 NON-MOTORIZED FACILITIES/SIDEWALKS

	6. Landscaping Plan
	7. Photometric Plan
	Sheets
	E010 - ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN


	8. Building and Floor Plan Set
	Sheets and Views
	20-1667-00-002  Fire Life Safety
	20-1667-00-100 Found Plan
	20-1667-00-_200 Floor Plan
	20-1667-00-201 Interior Floor Plan
	20-1667-00-_300 Frame-Bracing Plan
	20-1667-00-_400 Elevations
	20-1667-00-500 Interiors
	20-1667-00-501 Interiors
	20-1667-00-502 Interiors
	20-1667-00-503 Interiors
	20-1667-00-504 Interiors
	20-1667-00-505 Interiors
	20-1667-00-600 Details
	20-1667-00-601 Details
	20-1667-00-_650 Std Details
	20-1667-00-_651 Q-Lyft Details


	9. Drainage Calculations
	10. Variance application
	11. Variance Request Letter and Standards Form
	12. D & R Sports 10.3.2014 ZBA Minutes
	13. Spurr Dental Office 4.8.2002 ZBA minutes
	14. Friendship Animal Hospital 11.14.2023 ZBA Minutes



